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CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD.

NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 28th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Maxvalue
Credits and Investments Limitedwill be held on Friday 28th July 2023 at 11:30 a.m. IST
through Video Conferencing (“VC")/ Other Audio -Visual Means (“OAVM") to transact the
following business:

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as on
31st March 2023, Statementof Profitand Loss Accountas on 31st March 2023 and Cash Fiow
Statement as on that date together with notes forming part of accounts as audited and
reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company and the Directors’ Report to the
Shareholders thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Manoj Vellamparambil Raman (DIN: 08019559)
who retires by rotation under Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act 2013 and, being eligible,
offers himself for re-appointment.

3. To appoeint a Director in place of Mr. Christo George {DIN: 01027364) who retires by
rotation under Section 152 (6) of the Companies Act 2013 and, being eligible, offers
himself for re-appointment,

Special Business:

4. Issue of fully Secured Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures on Private Placement
Basis.

To consider and if thought fit, with or without modification, to pass the following resolution

as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Sections 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 18 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures)
Rules, 2014 and Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities} Rules
2014 asamended fromtime to time and applicable circularsissued by Reserve Bank of India,
consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directars of the
Company (hereinafterreferred to as “the Board” which term shall include any Committee
therecf), to make offers, invitations to subscribe and issue fully secured redeemable Non-
Convertible Debentures (NCDs) in one or more tranches on private placement basis or public
issue, listed or unlisted and whether rated or otherwise having such face value as may be
decided by the Board subject to an aggregate limit ¢f Rs.150 Cr (Rupees One hundred and
Fifty Crores) during the period commencing from the date of this meeting until the
conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to such persons eligible to subscribe the
issue on such terms and conditions including the rate of interest, tenure and security cover

thereof.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board

be and is hereby authorized to prepare and authenticate offer letters, issue and allot

debentures, create, charge, execute all such deeds, documents, instruments and writings as it
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may in its sole and absolute discretion deem necessary in relation thereto.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or
any of the powers herein conferred to any director(s) and/or officer (s) of the Company, to
give effect to the resolution.”

. To mortgage, Charge or hypothecate the assets of the company.
To consider and if thought fit, with or without modification, to pass the following resolution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 180(1)(a) and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under
(ijncluding any statutory moedification(s) or re-enactment thereoffor the time being in force),
and subject to such other approvals and permissions as may be required, consent of the
members be and is hereby accorded to sell, mortgage and or create charge on all or any
of the movable and orimmovable properties of the company and or the interest held by
tbe cempany in all or any of the movable and ocrimmovable properties, both present and
future and or the whole or any part of the undertaking(s) of the company up to the limits
approved by the members under section 180(1)(c), in favour of lender(s), agent(s) and
trustee{s) for securing the borrowings of the company to be availed by way of loan(s) and
securities (comprising non-convertible debentures,bonds or other debt instruments) to be
issued by the company, from time to time, together with interest at the respective agreed rates
and all other costs, charges and expenses and all other monies payable by the company in
terms of the loan agreement(s), debenture trust deed (s) or any other agreement /[
document, to be entered into between the companyand the lender (s} / investor(s) / agent
($) and / or trustee (s), in respect of the said loans, borrowings / debentures and containing
such specific terms and conditions and covenants in respect of enforcement of security as
may be stipulated in that behalf and agreed to between the company and the lender(s),
agent(s) and / or trustee(s).”

"hESOLVED FURTHER THAT the board of directors of the company (including any
committee thereof), be and is hereby authorized to finalize and execute such debenture trust
deeds or mortgage, charge, hypothecation, lien, promissory notes, deposit receipts and all
such deeds, documents, instruments or writings as may be necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient as they may deem fit and to do all such acts, deeds and things and give such
directions, as may be deemed necessary, desirable or expedient, to give effect to this
resolution.”

Rjatiﬁcation of Appointment of Mr. Kottarath Nandakumar (DIN: 03314802) as
the Managing Director of the company.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Special Resolution:

RjESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 196, 197 and 203 read with Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all other

applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory

modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of Association of ..

the Company and based on the recommendaticns of the Nomination & Remunera,tif/g;ﬁ .
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Committee and approval of the Board ofDirectors of the Company, the consent of the
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Kottarath
Nandakumar (DIN:03314802) as Managing Director ofthe company for a period of five
years with effect from 19th January 2023 to 18th January 2028 on such remuneration and
on such terms and conditions as may be decided by the Board of Directars from time to

time. ‘

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded, that
where in any Financial Year during the current tenure of Mr. Kottarath Nandakumarj(DlN:
03314802) as Managing Director, the Company has ne profits or its profits are inadequate,
then remuneration of Rs. 24,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Four Lakhs only) per annum be paid
to him as minimum remuneration in accordance with the limits prescribed as per the
provisions of Section Il of Part Il of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

NOTES:

. The business set outin the notice will be transacted through electronic voting system and
the company is providingfacility for voting by electronic means. Instructions and jother
information relating to e-voting are given in this notice at the end. |

. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are
requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board resolution authorizing such
representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. i

. Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
item Nos. 4 to 6 is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

. For receiving all communication (including Annual Report) from the Company electronically:

a) Members holding shares in physical mode and who have not registered / updated
their email address with theCompany are requested to register / update the same by
writing to the Company at csmaxvalue@gmail.com along with the request e-mail
mentioning the Name, Address, Folio No/DP ID, Client 1D}, PAN of the Shareho]derﬂ,

b) Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to register / update
their email addresses with therelevant Depository Participant.

Pursuantto the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Register of Members
and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from Saturday the 22nd ]uly
2023 to Friday the 28th July 2023 (both days inclusive).

Members holding shares in physical form under multiple folios are requested to consolidate
their holdings in a single folio. Members holding shares in physical form are requesfed to
consider converting their holding to dematerialized form to eliminate all risks associated
with physical shares and for ease of portfolio management.

All correspondence relating to change of address, change in the e-mail 1D already
registered with the company, transfer / transmission of shares, issue of duplicate éshare
certificates, bank mandates and all other matters relating to the shareholding in the con;hpany
may be made to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) of the Company at their
address M/s. SKDC Consultant Limited, Surya” 35, Mayflower Avenue, Behind Sénthﬂ:'% o \




Nagar, Sowripalayam Road, Coimbatore ~641028. Phone: 0422 4958995 email
info@skdc-consultants.com.

8. The Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company and the Annual Report of the
Company circulated to the members of the Company willi be made available on the
Company's website at www.maxvaluecredits.com.

9. Members desirous of obtaining any information / clarification relating to the accounts are
reéquested to submit their query in writing to the company at least 10 days in advance so as to
enable the management to keep the information ready.

10. Members are requested to register their email address to receive all communication and
decuments including annual reports to the email address provided by you.

Place: Thrissur For MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Date: 14.06.2023 CIN No.: U65921KL199&PLC009581
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ANNEXURETONOTICE

Explanatory Statements under Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013

Item No.4. Issue of fully Secured Redeemable Non - Convertible Debentures on Private
Placement Basis

As perthe provisions of Section 42 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment
of Securities) Rules, 2014, a company offering or making an invitation to subscribe to Non-
Convértible Debentures (“NCD”) on a private placement basis, is required to obtain the prior
approval of the Shareholders by way of a Special Resolution, which can be obtained once a year
for all the offers and invitations for such NCDs during the year.

The approval of the Members is being sought by way of a Special Resolution under Section
42 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act read with the Rules made there under, to
enable the Company to offer or invite subscriptions for the debentures issued on private
placement basis. The NCDs are proposed to be issued with face values of Rs.1000/ each and shall
be as per the applicable guidelines issued by the Reserve Bank of India in this regard.

The Directors recommend the Resolution given in the Notice, for the approval of the
Members by means of a specialresolution. None of the Directors of the Company, Key
Managerial Persons and their relatives is interested or concerned inany way in this resolution.

Item f\lo.s. To mortgage, Charge or hypothecate the assets of the company

As per the provisions of section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, a company shall not sell,
lease or otherwise dispose of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking ofthe . ...
company or where the company owns more than one undertaking, of the whole of Lo




substantially the whole of any of such undertakings, unless approval of the shareholders is
obtained by way of a special resolution. '

In connection with the loan/credit facilities to be availed by the company, as and when required,
through varicus sourcesfor business purposes, the company might be required to create
charges over its assets, properties and licenses by way of hypothecation, mortgage, lien, pledge
etc. in favour of its lenders (up to the limits approved under section 180(1)(c) of the Agt), for
the purposes of securing the loan / credit facilities extended by them to the conﬁpany.
Accordingly, the board recommends the resolution to be passed as a special resolution. ane of
the directors, key managerial personnel and their relatives is concerned or interested in the
resolution. ‘

Item No. 6. Ratification of Appointment of Mr. Kottarath Nandakumar (DIN: 03314802) as the
Managing Director of the company. i

RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 196, 197 and 203 read with Compianies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and all other
applicable provisions if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s} thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of Association of the
Company and based on the recommendations of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee
and approval of the Board of Directors of the Company, the consent of the members of the
Company be and is hereby accorded for the appointment of Mr. Kottarath Nandakumar;(DIN:
03314802) as Managing Director of the company for a period of five years with effeci from
19th January, 2023 to 18th January 2028 on such remuneration and on such terrﬁs and
conditions as may be decided by theBeard of Directors from time to time. '

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the consent of the members be and is hereby accorded, that where
in any Financial Year duringthe current tenure of Mr. Kottarath Nandakumar (DIN: 03314802)
as Managing Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate; then
remuneration of Rs, 24,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Four Lakhs only) per annum be paid to him as
minimum remuneration in accordance with the limits prescribed as per the provisi¢n5 of
Section Il of Part [ of Schedule Vof the Companies Act, 2013.

The Directors recommend the Resolution given in the Notice, for the approval of the
Members by means of a specialresolution. None of the Directors of the Company, Key
Managerial Persons and their relatives is interested or concerned inany way in this resolution.

Place: Thrissur For MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LIMITED
Date: 14.06.2023 CIN No.: U65921KL1995PLCO09581 ;= "

Akhil BVijay . ]
Company Secrt:%tary



DOMAX

CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD.

Dear Stakeholders,
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CIN : Us5921KL1995PLC009581

REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTQORS

Directors of your Company presenting the 28th Annual Report of Maxvalue Credits and Investments Limited (*Company”}
together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023.

1. Financial Summary

{(Amount in Rupees)

Description

2022-23

2021-22

Total Income

1,54,91,47,096.39

1,57,08,78,125.69

Total Expenditure

1,78,18,37,751.37

1,94,57,03,297.00

Profit before prior period items and tax

-23,26,90,654,98

-37,48,25,171.00

Prior period items

2,28,310.49

0

Profit before tax

-23,29,18,965.47

-37,48,25,171.00

Less: Deferred Tax

-1,74,80,340.24

-30,87,204.00

Profit for the Year

-21,54,38,625.23

-37,17,37,967.00

2, Dividend
Your Directors not recommended any dividend for the Financial Year 2022-23.
3. Nature of Business and operations of the Company

The company is engaged in providing loans such as Vehicle Loan, Gold Loan, Traders loan and Micro Finance to the extent
permitted for your company. The company also provides investments opportunities to its customers in the form of fully
secured Non- Convertible Redeemable Debentures and Subordinated Debts as per the prescribed guidelines issued by the
Reserve Bank of India.

4. Economic Scenario

The growing importance of the NBFC sector in the Indian financial system is reflected in the consistent rise of NBFCs’
credit as a proportion to GDP as well as in relation to credit extended by SCBs. Supported by various policy initiatives,
NBFCs could absorb the shocks of the pandemic. They built up financial soundness during FY22, marked by balance sheet
consolidation, improvement in asset quality, augmented capital buffers and profitability.

The continuous improvement in asset quality is seen in the declining GNPA ratio of NBFCs from the peak of 7.2% recorded
during the secand wave of the pandemic (June 2021} to 5.9 per cent in September 2022, reaching close to the pre-pandemic
level. Although this softening was observed across sectors, the GNPA ratio of the services sector remains in doubte digits.

With the decline in GNPAs, the capital position of NBFCs also remains robust, with a CRAR of 27.4 per cent in end-
September 2022, slightly lower than 27.6% in March 2022. However, it remains well above the regulatory requirement. The
decline of 20 bps was mainly because of an increase in RWA as lending picked up. The ROA has recouped over successive
half-years. RBI's stress test to assess the resilience of the NBFC sectar to credit risk shocks for a sample of 152 NBFCs reveals
that the number of NBFCs that would fail to meet the minimum regulatory capital requirement of 15 per ¢ent stood at 8
per cent under the baseline scenario. It increases to 10% and 13% under medium and severe stress scenarios, respectively.

Credit extended by NBFCs is picking up momentum, with the aggregate outstanding amount at ~ 31.5 lakh crore as of
September 2022. NBFCs continued to deploy the largest quantum of credit from their balance sheets to the industrial sector,
followed by retail, services, and agriculture. Loans to the services sector (share in outstanding credit being 14.7%) and
personal loans (share of 29.5%) registered a robust double-digit growth,

5. Business Outlook

The restrictions imposed on your company by the Reserve Bank of (ndia on 04th February 2020 are still in place. Over the
past three years, the Company has operated within the restrictions duly observing all regulatory compliances. The portfolio
size of the company has reduced to Rs.562 Cr as of 31st March 2023 from Rs.658 Cr as at 31st March 2022. ' :
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The major porticin of Asset under Management of the company constitutes vehicle toan and gold loan under reference.
The Vehicle Loan contributes 54% and Geld Loan contribute 28% as well to the Asset Under Management. However, the
Board has recognized that the company has to focus on the Consumer Loan and Business Loan to make a better yield in
the upcoming years. Initiatives to enter the company into Co-Lending and Business Correspondence Arrangements are also
under the consideration of the Board subject to the regulatory approval,

6. Performance af the Company

Revenue from operations of the company witnessed decrease from Rs. 157.08 Cr in 2021-22 to Rs 154.91 Cr during the FY
2022-23. Side by side, there is a corresponding decrease in the total expenses also from Rs.194.57 Cr to Rs.178.18 Cr during
the financial year, The total loans advanced under different loan schemes stood at Rs.658.55 Cr during the previous financial
year. Total loans as on 31.03.2023 stood at Rs.562.26. Cr, showing a decline 14.62%. as compared to the previous year.
This decline was part of a planned strategy to keep the RWA of the Company within the regulator mandated level.

During 2022-23. Your Company repaid Rs.12.14 Cr towards redemption of matured NCDs and Rs.179.42. Cr towards
matured subordinated debts. The Company has raised Rs.3.07 Cr as NCD and Rs.51.75 Cr as Subordinate debt as an
additional borrowing during the year 2022-23. The Company made a Gross Profit of Rs. 2.85 Cr during 2022-23. After
making the nece¢sary non-cash appropriations such as provision for NPA (including additional provision), depreciation,
deferred revenue expenditure, etc. the Net Loss of the Company for the financial year stood at Rs. 21.54 Cr,

The overall CRAR and the Tier-t CRAR of the Company stood at 17.62 % and 11.92% respectively.
7. Business Plans,

The future husiness plans of your Company will focus on improving the operationat efficiency and on achieving profitabitity.
This will include improving branch profitability, closing down persistently loss making branches, shifting to a low cost
branch concept, expanding branch network in profitable gecgraphies including expanding presence into more southern
and Central Indian States, reviewing loan products from the yield angle and weeding out low yielding schemes, improving
interest yield ang non-interest income, reducing NPAs to acceptable levels etc.

For the current financial year 2023-24, the Company will continue to face large scale redemption of NCDs and Subordinated
Debts. The Company will need to replace the maturing funds by way of fresh equity infusion and by raising fresh borrowings
through permissible means. As such, liquidity management shall be an important component of all future business plans of
the Company. Apart from this, the Company will also have the needed plans to raise its business to the next level ance the
supervisory restrictions are removed by the Reserve Bank,

In the meanwhile, company is focusing on recovery of the Amounts written off in the previous years and improvement of
branch and product profitability. The Company also looks upon the replacement of maturing borrowings as a welcome
opportunity to regduce its fund cost substantially and thereby improve its margins. The Company is also exploring various
options for raising cheaper funds through bank borrowings.

Your Company will continue its efforts to reduce credit concentration risks by continually reviewing and rebalancing its
loan portfolio. During the year, the share of two-wheeler loans was brought down from 64.95.% as at March 2022 to 53.90
% as at March 2023. Side by side, the share of Gold Loans increased from 19.90% to 27.54.% during the same period. The
company, with the upward revision in the cap for microfinance loans by NBFCs, focusing more profitability in the current
financial year by ;expanding into this segment.

8. Branch Expansion.

As on 31st March 2023, the Company had 81 branches in Kerala, 52 in Karnataka and 7 in Andhra Pradesh, For 2023-24
Your company is looking for closing down of the non-profit making branches in Karnataka and Andhra Pradesh and to open
few branches in potential area of the said regions.

9. Resources

Subordinated Debts and Fully Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures continued to be the major sources of funds
for your company during the previous financial year. During the previgus financial year ended 31.03,2023, the company
paid off Rs.191.56 towards the maturity payment of Subordinated debt and debenture. it will be facing challenges in the
current financial year also insofar as resource mobilization and conservation is concerned as the NCDs and Subordinated
Debts raised during the earliest years continued to be fall due for redemption. Also, your directors are hopeful to get loans




from the commercial banks.

10. Share Capital

The Autheorized Share Capital of the company comprises of 99,80,00,000 Equity shares of Rs.3 each and 1C,00,000 (Ten
Lakhs) 14% Redeemable Preference shares of Rs. 10 each aggregating the total authorized capital at Rs.500 Cr. The Paid -up
Share capital of the company as on the date of this report was Rs.164,75Cr. The Capital adequacy ratio of the company as
on 31.03.2023 was 17.62% of the aggregate risk weighted assets on balance sheet and risk adjusted value of the off- balance
sheet items which was more than the statutory requirement of 15%.

11. Transfer to Reserves:

The company incurred a net loss of Rs. 21,54,38,625.23 Cr/-. Hence the transfer to statutory reserve is not applicable for
the company.

12, Internal Audit and Internal Control.

Your Company has developed a proper and adequate Internal Audit and Control System to ensure that the assets of the
company are safeguarded and well protected. The Internal Audit system takes care to see that the income leakages are
guarded against while minimizing possibilities for losses. The Internal Audit Department is in charge of an experienced
professicnal having sufficient experience and expertise. There is 2 documented plan far frequent audits at branches and

head office.

The Board has adopted the policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to the company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparations of reliable financial disclosures, The
adequacy of the internal audit system is reviewed by the Audit Committee and suggests ways and means to improve the
perfarmance of the Audit team further, The Internal Auditor reports directly to the Audit Committee of the company. The
internal control systems are reviewed periodically to see that it is adequate commeasuring the size of the organization.

13. Risk Management

Your board has placed a comprehensive risk management policy for the company and there is a Risk Management Committee
to monitor the risks. Besides Risk Management Committee of the Board, the company have Asset Liability Management
Committee supported by the Asset Liability Management Committee Support Group consisting of senior offictals to monitor
and manage the risk profile of the company. It aims to identify risks well in advance and finding out ways to eliminate or
minimize the riskis to the maximum extent possible.,

14, Human Resources

As on 31st March 2023 there were 1464 employees on the muster rolls of the company. Your Company regards the
employees as its core strength and provides opportunities to all staff far better learning and development. There is a Training
Department in the company which provides various training for all employees to develop their professional skill and overall
motivation,

15. Deposits:

Your Company is a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking NBFC registered with Reserve Bank of India with Registration
No. B-16.00119. The Company has not accepted or renewed any deposits covered under chapter ¥ of Companies Act,
2013 and Non - Banking Financial Companies Acceptance of Public Deposits (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998. Hence the
disclosures under Rule 8 {(5) (v) and 8 (5) {vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable to our company,

16. Disclosures pursuant to Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company
{(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016.

Yours company ha;s complied with all applicable regulations prescribed by Reserve Bank of India from time to time.

17. Related Party Transactions

The Board of Directors of your Company has formulated a policy on related party transactions, which is displayed on the
web site of the Company at www,maxvaluecredits.com. This policy deals with review of the retated party transactions and
regulates all transactions between the Company and its Related Parties. Details of all materiat transaction mthfelaterartles
are disclosed at Note No.22 to the Financial Statements. ;




18, Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Pursuant to Sectipn 186{11)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’} read with Rule 11(2} of the Companies (Meetings of
Board and its Povi}ers} Rules, 2014, the loan made, guarantee given or security provided in the ordinary course of business
by a Non- Banking Financial Company (NBFC) registered with Reserve Bank of India are exempt from the applicability of
provisions of Secﬁion 186 of the Act. The Company has also not made any investments coming under the purview of above
section. As such the particulars of loans and guarantee have not been disclosed in this Report.

19. Directors and ichanges among directors:

The following diréctors are liable to retire by rotation at the Annuat General Meeting and are proposed to be re-appointed.
a)  Mr. Manoj Ve‘:llamparambil Raman (DIN: 08019559)

b} Mr. Christo Gieorge (DIN: 01027364)

On the recornme:ndations of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the company has appointed Mr. Kottarath
Nandakumar, Nan- Executive Director as the Managing Director at the Board Meeting held on 19.01.2023. Also, Mr.
Paulson Chirayath Varkey, Director was resigned from the Board as on 19.01.2023

20. Declaration from Independent Directors

The Independent pirectors have submitted disclosure that they meet the criteria of independence as provided under Section
149(6) of Companies Act, 2013. A statement by Company Secretary confirming receipt of this declaration from Independent
Directors is Annexed to this report as Annexure-1,

21, Palicy on appbintment and remuneration of Directors and performance evaluation

The Nomination iand Remuneration and Stakehotders relationship committee of the company has formulated a policy
for selection, appointment and remuneration of the directors, senior management personnel as required under Section
178(3} of Comparjies Act, 2013. The committee shall be responsible for Identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors and whb may be appointed in Senior Management in accordance with the prescribed criteria and recommend
to Board their apgointment and remaval. The committee alse review and carry out the performance of Board members and
make recommendations to the Board for improvement of performance if any required. The committees also determine the
qualifications, pdsitive attitudes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to
remuneration for the Directors and KMP’s.

22, Board Meeting:s:

There were 9 Dinfectors on the Board as on 31.03.2023. During 2022-23 the Board met on 10 occasions. The intervening
gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013. The Details of Board Meetings
and attendance of the Directors were detailed in the table below: -

Board Meetings held during the financial year 2022-23: -

S.No Date of Board Meeting Number of Directors intended to Number of Directors attended
attend Board Meeting
1. 06.05.2022 10 7
2. 01.07.2022 10 8
3. 15.07.2022 10 8
4. | 25.10.2022 10 10
5. 06.12.2022 10 8
6. 19.01.2023 10 10
7. 06.02.2023 9 9
8. 28.02.2023 9 7
9. 15.03.2023 . 9 9
10. 31.03.2023 9 8




Sl No. © Name of Director DIN No. of Meetings held | No, of Meetings Attended
1. | CV Paulson 01757804 10 6
2. Pratha;ian KR 00105867 10 9
3. | Gireesh K 02552307 10 8
4. | Roy Johnson v 02361482 T 6
5. Chn‘sto%George 01027364 10 10
6. | Manoj VR 08019559 10 10
7. | PN Parameswaran 08417272 10 8
8. jSaraladeviM 08417393 10 10
9. | V.KGopinathan 00924311 10
10. | Kottarath Nandakumar 03314802 10 9

23. Director’s resﬁonsibility statement:
In accordance witﬁ the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act 2013, your directors confirm that:

a} inthe preparajtion of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31st March 2023, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the directors had selected such accounting poticies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are
reasonable an@ prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March 2023 and the
profit of the Lompany for that period;

¢} the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

d) the directors Had prepared the annuat accounts on a going concern basis;

e) thedirectars had laid down internal financial controts to be followed by the company and that such internal financial controls
are adequate and were operating effectively.

fy thedirectors hhd devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems
were adequa{:e and operating effectively.

24, Extract of Anndal Return:

The extract of Anjhual Return in Form MGT-9 pursuant to the provisions of Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 is fumished and it will be uploaded to the website of the company.

25. Explanation to ?Auditors qualification in the auditor’s report:

The Auditors Reporit not contained any qualifications.

26, Disclosure undér 134 (2) (ca).
No frauds have beén reported by the Statutory Auditors of the Company under section 134 (2) (ca) of Companies Act, 2013,

27, Statutory Auditors:

On recommendation of Board of Directors of the Company, members of the Company appointed M/s. Unnikrishnan & Co,
Chartered Accountants, Al Ameen Shopping Complex, Tana, Irinjalakuda (Firm Reg No. 0044605S) as Statutory Auditors of the
Company at the 24th Annual General Meeting held on 30.09.2019 for a term of 5 consecutive years i.e, till the conclusion of 29th
Annual General Méeting pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, Pursuant to notification issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs on May 07, 2018, amending Section 139 of the Companies Act 2013, the mandatory requirements for ratification
of appointment of auditors by the members at every AGM does not arise. The Auditors are eligible to continue as Auditors in
accordance with the provisions of Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 as per the certificate received from them. The Report
given by M/s. Unm':krishnan & Co, Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors, on the financial statement of the Company for the

year 2022-23 is pért of the Annual Report,




28. Cost Auditors:
The company is not required to appoint a Cost Auditer pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

29, Secretarial Audit:

As required under Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration
personnel) Rules, the Board has appointed M/s. Prasanth and Associates as the Secretarial Auditor to make the Secretarial Audit
report for the financial year 2022-23. The report made by M/s. Prasanth and Associates is attached to this and forms part of the

report.
30. Conservation of energy, Technology absorption and Foreign exchange outgo:

The information required under the provisions of Section 134{3) {m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 (3} of The
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in respect of conservation of energy and technology absorption, Foreign exchange earnings
and gutgo, is as follows:

a), Conservation oi' Energy and Technology absorption

Your Company being a Non-Banking Financial Company, its activities are not energy intensive. However, your Company has
taken adequate measures for conservation of energy and usage of alternative source of energy wherever possible. Similarly, the
operations of the company do not require adoption of any specific technology. However, your Company has been in the forefront
in implementing latest Information technologies and tools towards enhancing customer convenience as well as security efficiency.

b). Foreign Exchange Earnings and Cutgo
The Company does not have any foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the period covered under this report.
31, Information ab}:ut the financial performance/financial position of the subsidiaries/associates/ Joint Venture:

The Company doeis not have any Joint venture or Associate Company or Subsidiary Company. $o, no company has become or
ceased to be the Subsidiary/ Associate/ Joint Venture of our company during the financial year under reference.

32. Corporate social responsibility policy:

The Company has npt developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions of Section
139 and rules made there under are not applicable.

33, Particulars of qontracts or arrangements made with related parties:

The Board has frained a policy on related party transactions, which is also posted on the web site of the Company at www.
maxvaluecredits.com, This policy deals with review of the related party transactions and regulates all transactions between the
Company and its Related Parties. All related party transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for review and approval.
All transactions or arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188 (1) of the Act, entered into during the year were on
arm’s length basis br were in ordinary course of business or with approval of the Audit Committee.

During the year, your Company had entered into contract / arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered
material in accordénce with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. The particulars of contracts/
arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company with related parties during the financial year referred to in Section 188{1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 in prescribed Form AOC-2 is appended as Annexure C to the Directors Report.

34. Particulars of employees:

None of the employee has received remuneration exceeding the limit as stated in rule 5(2} of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,

35, Constitution of Audit Committee:

The provisions of Sfection 177 of Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under relating to the constitution of Audit Committee
are applicable to our Company. The company has constituted Audit Committee in the financial year 2019-20.

36. Details of significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunal:

There are ng significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern-gt:a-'f!im 2 e
company's operation in future, o . ___\.



37. Material changes and commitments:

There has been ne material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the company which
have occurredbetween the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statements relate and the
date of the report.,

38. Disclosure regérding issue of equity shares with differential rights:

The company has not issued any shares with differential rights during the year.

39. Disclosure regarding issue of Employee Stock Options:

The company has not issued any shares under an Employee Stock Option scheme during the year.

40. Disclosure rega:crding issue of Sweat Equity Shares:

The company has riot issued any sweat equity shares during the year.

41, Disclosures under sexual harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013:

Theinternal Complaints Committee constituted by the Company under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act 2013 tooks into the complaints of aggrieved women employees, if
any, and is instrumental in promoting gender equality and justice and the universally recognized human right to
work with dignity, prevention of sexual harassment of women at the workplace,

42, Details of Auctions Held During the Year 2022-23.
Additional disclosures as required by Circular DNBS.CC.PD.No.356/03.10.01/2013-2014 dated September 16th,

2013 issued by Reserve Bank of India on auction of gold ornaments pledged by borrowers, during the financial year
2022-23 are given below.

Year No. = of Loan| Principal amount | Interest amount | Total (A+B) {Rs.)] Value fetched (Rs.)
Accounts outstanding at the | outstanding at the
dates of auction(A) | dates of auction (B}
{Rs.} (Rs.})
2022-23 3085 175,284,266.00 54,267,083.00 229,551,349.00( 223,223,118.87

43. Acknowledgment:

Your Directors thank the Company’s stakehalders in large including investors, customers, banks, financial
institutions, rating agencies, debenture holders, debenture trustees and well-wishers for their continued support
during the year. Your Directors place on record their appreciation of the contribution made by the employees of
your Company andi its subsidiaries at all levels.Company’s consistent growth was made possible by their hard work,
solidarity, co-oper;'cltion and support. The Board sincerely expresses its gratitude to Reserve Bank of India and Ministry
of Corporate Affairs for the guidance and support received from them including officials there at from time to
time,

Your Directors woyld tike to express their grateful appreciation for the assistance and co-operation received from
its members,employees and government Autharities and customers. Your Board appreciates the confidence
reposed in the Cornpany and values it above all.

For MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN No.: U65921KL1995PLC009581

Place: Thrissur
Date: 14.06.2023

Mr. Manaj VR (DIN:02552307) Mr. Kpttarath—Nandakumarmlbl 0331,4.801)

Whole- Time Director Managing Director __
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CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD. Annaxure- 1
Declaration regarding receipt of Certificate of Independence

| hereby confirm that the Company has received certificates from the independent directors namely Mr, Perinthalakka
Parameswaran Narayanan (DIN: 08417272}, and Mrs. Saraladevi Mecheriparambil (DIN:08417393) stating thei

independence as required under Section 149 (6) of the Companies Act, 2013. ,(_’)
'i‘.'-.—-—_..— — Cw‘ C_ _ . .
Thrissur Kottarath Nandakumar
14.06,2023 Managing Director
Annexure B

FORM NO. AOC -2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to
in sub section {1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso

thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s Length basis.

a) Name ({5) of the related party and nature of relationship NIL
b Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions NIL
¢}  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions NIL
d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any NIL
e} Justification for entering inte such contracts or arrangements ¢r transactions ' NIL
fy  Date of approval by the Board NIiL
g}  Amount paid as advances, if any NEL

h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first NIL
proviso to section 188

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s Length basis

Name (s) of the related Hykon India Limited Maxvalue Consultancy Services
party and nature of rela-
tionship

Nature of contracts/ar- Oral contract for suppty of UPS/ Batteries and j Contract is for marketing of consumer goods
rangements/transactions | for repairs and maintenance of the same. and customer services.
Duration of the contracts/ | No specific period mentioned. 3 years from 05.03.2020
arrangements/ transac-
tions

T: +91 487 2422799 | E:info@maxvaluecredits.com | W:www.maxvaluecredits.com )
Regd. Office: Cee Kay Plaza, Opp. Metropolitan Hospital, Koorkenchery, Thrissur, Kerala - 680007




Name (s) of the related
party and nature of rela-
tionshib

Hykon India Limited

Maxvalue Consultancy Services

Salient terms of the con-
tracts or arrangements
or transactions including
the value, if any

Upper limit for the contract is Rs. 10000000/ -

The company shall ensure smooth function-
ing of the consumer {0an portfolio by timely
distributing the materials and promptly at-
tending customer complaints. Company shall
release Rs. 10110 for each product to the firm
and Rs.4995 for each product in case of top
up toans.

As per the Agreement, the Company shall pro-
vide Rs. 100/ -per each item as service charges
to the Service provider. The service provider
shall provide a commission to the company
for the reference of each customer by the
company and the commission amount shail
be agreed mutually between the parties on
time to time. This agreement still continues.

Date of approval by the

02.04.2018 05.03.2020
Board _
Amount paid as.advan¢- ) No No
es, if any :
Date on which the NA NA

Special resolution was
passed in the General
Meeting as required
under first proviso to

section 188.
For Maxvalue Credits and Investments Limited
Thrissur < KottarattrNandakamar—— Mr. VR Manoj
14.06.2023 DIN:03314802 DIN:08019559

Managing Director

Whole Time Director
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CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

A, INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELQPMENTS,

Non-banking financial companies (NBFCs) are used to enhance the mainstream banking system in the financial intermediation
process and financial inclusion. NBFCs play a significant role in promoting inclusive growth by providing financial services
to the less-banked customers as well as unorganized sector such as the micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMES)
through efficiency and diversity. Since a large chunk of India’s population did not even have bank accounts a decade ago,
the government has been encouraging financial inclusion. And one of the vital compenents of financial inclusion is adequate
access to credit, which has created enormous prospects for the NBFC sector. This is a key factor that many NBFCs have been
constantly focusing on improving their services through diversified afferings, technology adoption, strategic partrership,
robust operational model, and regulatory compliance.

B. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS.

Given their last-mile connectivity and agile system, NBFC’s have played a majar role in the country’s economic transformation,
NBFC's have hugely improved the access to credit for the country's vast unorganized sector. Aided by government's thrust
towards digital economy, NBFCs have also undertaken significant digital transformation, invested in Al and technglogy
platforms, leveraged data analytics for personalized products and services and ensured faster disbursement of credit. As India
strategizes post-pandemic economic recovery through fiscal measures and businesses aim to expand capacities, NBFCs have
a huge opportunity to grow their balance sheets in the coming decade. The growing digitalization in the sector, emerging
business models e.g. peer-to-peer lending, opportunities in the wake of government initiatives such as ONDC network and
other aspects such as ESG, Tech risk, Fraud risk etc. Towards achieving the noble goal of ‘Aatmanirbhar 8harat’ and India
becoming a USD 3 trillion economy by 2025, NBFCs have a major role in accelerating the flow of credit to businesses and
households.

SWOT ANALYSIS
STRENGTHS
i. Strong track record in financing against gold jewelry.

Based on this industry experience, we have designed an appropriate assessment and underwriting methodology. We have
a substantial brand value and reputation in India. Reputation and trust play a significant role in this financing segment as it
assures the customer of credibility.

ii. Technology Adoption

The recent few years have seen the emergence of integration of the NBFCs business operations with technology, to bring
in productivity and efficiency. This enables companies operating in this space to offer simple, efficient, and cost-effective
services such as credit score calculation, customer onboarding, loan disbursement, and collection

among others. Our company has evolved in the area of information technology. We have adopted lot of changes in the IT
area to facilitate the stakeholder’s various services such as payment of EMI, to know schedule of payment etc. We have also
introduced the payment App in the google play store “Max Pay” toc pay the EMI seamlessly.

iii. Adequate Capitalization

We have an adequate capital adequacy ratio of 17.52% of the aggregate risk weighted assets as on balance sheet and risk
adjusted value of the off- balance sheet items which was more than the statutory requirement of 15%. Lower asset-side risk
also supports capitalization.

WEAKNESS / AREA OF IMPROYEMENT

a. Challenges associated with non-gold loan segments

Growth, asset quality, and profitability in the non-gold loan businesses have not stabilized fully. The collection efficiency
in the microfinance and Auto loan portfolios was affected during the Pandemic situation. Delinguencies have mched up
against the backdrop of the pandemic-related disruptions and requires close monitoring, -
T: +91 487 2422799 | E:info@maxvaluecredits.com | W:www.maxvaluecredits, com
Regd. Office: Cee Kay Plaza, Opp. Metropolitan Hospital, Koorkenchery, Thrissur, Kerala - 680007




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
A. INDUSTRY §TRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS,

Non-banking financial companies (NBFCs} are used to enhance the mainstream banking system in the financiat intermediation
process and financial inclusion, NBFCs play a significant role in promating inclusive growth by providing financial services
to the less-banked customers as well as unorganized sector such as the micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs)
through efficiency and diversity. Since a large chunk of India's population did not even have bank accounts a decade ago,
the government has been encouraging financial inclusion. And one of the vital components of financial inclusion is adequate
access to credit, which has created enormous prospects for the NBFC sector. This is a key factor that many NBFCs have been
constantly focljsing on improving their services through diversified offerings, technology adoption, strategic partnership,
robust operational model, and regulatory compliance.

B. OPPORTUNi'FIES AND THREATS.

Given their last-mile connectivity and agile system, NBFC's have played & major role in the country’s economic transformation.
NBFC’s have hugely improved the access to credit for the country's vast unorganized secter. Aided by government's thrust
towards digital’ economy, NBFCs have also undertaken significant digital transfarmation, invested in Al and technology
platforms, leveraged data analytics for personalized products and services and ensured faster disbursement of credit. As India
strategizes post-pandemic economic recovery through fiscal measures and businasses aim to expand capacities, NBFCs have
a huge opportunity to grow their balance sheets in the coming decade. The growing digitalization in the sector, emerging
business models e.g. peer-to-peer lending, opportunities in the wake of government initiatives such as ONDC network and
other aspects such as ESG, Tech risk, Fraud risk etc. Towards achieving the noble goal of ‘Aatmanirbhar Bharat’ and India
becoming a USD 5 trillien economy by 2025, NBFCs have a major role in accelerating the flow of credit to businesses and
households.

SWOT ANALYSIS
STRENGTHS
i. Strong track record in financing against gold jewelry.

Based on this ihdustry experience, we have designed an apprepriate assessment and underwriting methodology. We have
a substantial brand value and reputation in India. Reputation and trust play a significant role in this financing segment as it
assures the customer of credibility.

ii. Technology Lﬁdoption

The recent few years have seen the emergence of integration of the NBFCs business operations with technology, to bring
in productivity and efficiency. This enables companies operating in this space to offer simple, efficient, and cost-effective
services such as Credit score calculation, customer onboarding, loan disbursement, and collection

among others. Our company has evolved in the area of information technology. We have adopted {ot of changes in the IT
area to facilitate the stakeholder’s various services such as payment of EMI, to know schedule of payment etc. We have also
introduced the payment App in the google play store “Max Pay” to pay the EMI seamnlessly.

iii. Adequate Capitalization

We have an adbquate capital adequacy ratio of 17.52% of the ageregate risk weighted assets as on balance sheet and risk
adjusted value of the off- balance sheet items which was more than the statutory requirement of 15%. Lower asset-side risk
also supports gapitalization.

WEAKNESS / iREA OF IMPROVEMENT
a. Challenges associated with non-gold loan segments

Growth, asset uality, and profitability in the non-gold loan businesses have nct stabilized fully. The collection efficiency
in the microfinance and Auto loan portfolios was affected during the Pandemic situation. Delinguencies have inched up
against the backdrop of the pandemic-related disruptions and requires close monitoring.




b. Regulatory restrictions

The informal nature of the NBFC sector increases its regulatory risk. One of the ways this increased regulatory risk can be
observed is the frequency of regulatory changes brought in by the RBI. For example, on April 19 2022, RBI issued guidelines
for loans and advances by NBFCs and the disclosures they are required to make under a scale-based regulatory framework.
A consequencd of frequent regutatory changes are compliance costs that are borne by individual

NBFCs, which reduces their ability to be competitive and protect their margins.

OPPORTUNITIES

a, Untapped Pdtential

The one of thei business of the Company, of providing gold loans, continues to offer excellent growth potential. The gold
leans business model aims primarily to impart liguidity to this stock, which is still mostly untapped. The company had a
growth of Rs_33 Cr during the previous financial year and expected to grow in the coming years also.

b. Technology Innovations

We had provided online disbursal that is cashless and available to the customer. Given the convenience, and the fact that
cash disbursements are being increasingly more regulated, online is well peised to take over a larger share of the market.

THREATS

a. A sharp decline in the price of gold within a short period may adversely affect repayments and limit growth prospects.

b. Business is highly regulated, and it may be adversely affected by future regulatory changes,

¢. Financial performance is vulnerable to interest rate risk.

d. NBFCs are susceptible to credit risk due to the lack of vital information

C. SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE.

P AND L STATEMENT 2023 MARCH {IN LAKHS)

Group Name J Vehicle Loan Gold Loan Micre Finance Traders Loan Total
Total - Interest Income 76,39,09,467.46 | 33,73,48,643.80( 19,13,30,653.58( 6,84,47,371.1%1,36,10,36,136.03
Total-Gperating Income 9.16,14,784,66 62,76,365.56 1,%1,63,650.00 2,19,35,796.16 13,49,90,596.38
Tatal - Other Income 2,10,40,503.64 30,60,328.01 46,08,956.21 3,89,966.71 2,90,99,754.57
Total Direct Income 87,65,64,755.76 | 34,66,85,337.37} 21,11,03,259.79| 9,07,73,134.06 ] 1,52,51,26,486.98
Total Direct -Expense 2,29,31,883.47 16,31,932.00 1,16,700.00 97,445.00 2,47,77,961.47

Total Diwrect- Employee Benefit
Cost

n

16,73,32,349.61

11,58,34,805.64

6,14,13,574.98

1,90,74,581.89

36,36,55,312.12

Total Direct -Finance cost

45,19,76,391.02

18,78,06,124.02

10,53,11,119.95

3,09.64,728.71

77.60,58,363.70

Total Direct Expense

64,22,40,624.10

30,52,72,861.66

16,68,41,394.93

5,01,36,756.60

1,16,44,91,637.29

DIRECT PART-Profit/Loss

23,43,24,131.66

4,14,12,475.72

4,42,61,864.86

4,06,36,377.46

36,06,34,849.69

Tetal other income

1,35,63,469.48

56,35,91%.67

31,60,307.02

9,29,228.08

2,32,88,924.24

Total Income

89,01,28,225.23

35,23,21,257.04

21,42,63,566.81

9,17,02,362.14

1,54,84,15,411.22

Total Indirect fipance cost

Total tndirect- Iimployee Benefit
Cost

5,28,91,082.44

2,21,02,490.71

1,23,93,488.08

36,39,629.44

9,10,26.690.67

Income

Total-Administrative cost 25,03,66,094.99| 10,40,32,615.02 5,83,35,644,04 1,71,52,484.87 | 42,98,86,838.93
Total Depreciation 73,89,509.11 2,711,727t 3 10,28,002.70 44,74,308.36 4,10,63,091.47
Total Deferretl tax expense/f 3,16,45,145.31 1,31,50,213.62 73,73,654.58 21,65,452.99 5,43,38,506.50

Total Indirect expense

34,22,95,831.84

16,64,56,5590.66

8.01,30,829.40

2,74,31,875.67

61,63,15,127.57

Total Expense ;

98,45,36,455.94

47,17,29,452.32

14,69,72,224.33

7,75,68,632.27

1,78,08,06,764.86

Profit/Loss (before provision)

-9,44,08,230.71

-11,94,08,195.28

-3,27,08,657.52

1,41,33,729.86

-23.2391.353.64




Group Name Vehicle Loan Goid Loan Micro Finance Traders Loan Total

Extra ordinary ifems 1,45,695.38 60,539.63 33,947.22 $,981.53 2,50,163.77

Deferred Tax 1,01,80,550.16 42,30,242.34 13,72,082.17 6,97,465.58 1,74,.80,340.24

Profit/Loss (after provision) -8,40,81,985.17 -11,51,17,413.31 -3,03,02,628.13 1,48,41,176.97 -21.46,600849 63
0. OUTLOOK

The supervisory restrictions placed on your Company by the Reserve Bank of India during February 2020 are still in place,
Over the past two years, the Company has operated within the restrictions duly observing all regulatory compliances. Due to
the cap on the Risk weighted Assets prescribed by the RBI, the Company has nor ventured into aggressive credit expansion;
but on the other hand, focussed on resizing and recasting its loan partfolios. As a result, the Company is now laying
emphasis on fast recycling loan products such as gold loan and traders’ toans as these segments return stable and retiable
yietd. Moreover, these loan products are Less prone to default and delinquency and as such, crate a healthier credit portfotio.

Your Company alsg concentrated on utilising its resources in those geographies that offer better cost efficiency and margins.
With this objective, the Company increased its presence in Karnataka and has also ventured into Andhra Pradesh in a small
way during 2021-22.

One of the biggest challenges that the Company faced during 2022-23 was managing the large pile up of Non-Performing
Assels resulting from the two years of pandemic induced slowdown and subdued recoveries. The company, during the
previous Financial year 2022-23, written off around Rs. 41 Crores to ctean up the Balance sheet. The Company has put
in ptace a separate mechanism to deal with the monitoring and recovery cf non-performing assets by creating a dedicated
Department at Corporate Office headed by a Vice President in the year 2021-22 for effective management in reduction of
NPA. The recov'rery of the written off accounts has been strengthen which will contribute to the net profit of the company
in the year 2023-24. The company is expected to collect atleast Rs.9 Crores from the recovery proceeds by the end of the
current financial year,

E. RISKS AND !CONCERNS.

Risk management forms an integral part of our business. The key risks are Credit Risk, Interest Rate Risk, Market Risk (collateral
price), Liquidity Risk and Operational Risk, These risks, if not effectively managed may have a bearing on our financiat
strength and operations. Bearing this in mind, we continuously improve our risk management policies and procedures
and implement them rigorously for the efficient functioning of our businesses. The key cbjective in the risk management
processes is to measure and monitor the risks and effectively contain these within acceptable limits,

The Company has the Board approved ‘Enterprise Risk Management Policy and Framework” and various other risk
management policies relating to the Credit Risk Management, Liquidity Risk Management, Risk Tolerance among others and
its implementation is supervised by the Board of Director’s Risk Management Committee (RMC). RMC periodically
reviews various risk levels and their movement, composition of the assets and liability portfolios, the status of impaired
assets, recovery/ collection etc. Risk Management functions of the Company are independent of the business sourcing units,

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has put in place an adequate internal control system to safeguard all its assets and ensure operational
excellence. The system also meticulously records all transaction details and ensures regulatory compliance. The Company
also has a team of internal auditers to conduct an internai audit which provides that all transactions are correctly authorised
and reported. The Audit Committee of the Board reviews the reports. Wherever necessary, strengthening of internal control
systems and corrective actions initiated.

We are having'a systematic audit plan for the company to have a proper internal control as given below.
1.All branches will be audited once in every 2 months,

2. Gold audit will be conducted in atl branches every month, where the outstanding in gold loan more than 3 crore will be
audited once in every 15 days. -



3.All the other offices, we put to audit in every quarter.

The audit rectifications are strictly followed up and pending irregularities reviewed in the Audit committee.

HUMAN RESOURCE

The Company believes that people perform to the best of their capability in organisations to which they feel genuinely
associated, The Company focuses on widening organisational skills and impraving organisational effectiveniess by having a
competent and engaged workforce. Qur people are our partners in progress, and employee empowerment has been critical
in driving our drganisation’s growth to the next level,

Each of the Company's business vertical has an explicit performance management model that helps in aligning individual
performance with that of the business. Talent Management and Development in that scenario plays a pivotal role to attract
and build people capability for their growth and through them for the growth of the organisation. The Company also
identifies and adopts best industry practices related to Health, Safety, Security and Environment which outlines the core of
its business and ensures in developing a culture where its employees drive them.

!NFORMATIOI}I TECHNOLOGY

The Company has begun a transformation of the technology landscape. Technology has been deployed to support the
maore straightferward implementation of partnerships for business generation and collections, operational efficiencies, and
compliance with statutes. In line with this, the Company has implemented enterprise platforms such as business process
management and business intelligence.

F.INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY,

The Company has evolved a robust proper and adequate internal audit system in keeping with the size of the Company
and its busineds model. Your Company has developed well documented internal audit and control system for meticulous
compliance from all layers/verticals of the Company. The control system ensures that the Company's assets are safeguarded
and protected | The audit systern also takes care to see that revenue leakages and losses to the Company are prevented and
our income streams are protected. The control system enables reliable financial reporting.

Company has a well-structured Audit & Inspection department to pesrform timely and frequent internal audit to evaluate the
adequacy of systems and procedures and also to evaluate the status of compliance to Company’s guidelines and other statutory
requirements. The department is manned by a team of over 37 dedicated personnel who constantly engaged in safeguarding
your Company’s assets ensures the quality of assets pledged and also evaluates the adequacy of risk management systems
at its operating units. in keeping with the network and geographic outreach of the operating units spread across southern
states of the country the audit functions have been decentralized through setting up of Regional Audit offices in important
Regional centres. The Regional Audit Offices exercise field level control over the branches through onsite visits. The field
level Auditors report to Regional Audit offices who in turn shares their findings with the Audit & Inspection Department at
the Registered Office of the Company.

Audit Committee of Board of Directors is apex Audit Authority of the Company. Under the present Audit Architecture,
the Internal Atjdit Department reports to the Audit Committee regarding significant audit findings and also preventive and
corrective measures to protect the interests of the Company.

The audit Committee undertakes an evaluation of the adequacy and effectiveness of internal control systems. It alsc oversees the
implementation of audit recommendations especially involving the risk management measures,

In addition to reviewing the internal control systems put in place by the Audit & Inspection Department the Audit Committee
also imparts gisidance and crucial directions for upgradation of systems and controls on ongoing basis.

At present the Audit system prevalent in the Company is compietely autonomous function and built on best corporate
governance framework.

G. DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE.

Revenue from operation has decreased from Rs.152.63¢r to Rs.149.65 ¢r. Interest income from loan has reduced from
Rs.137.43cr to Rs.136.15 cr, This was mainly with respect to reversal of Uncollected interest due to the increase in NPA.
However, feeibased income has decreased from Rs.15.19¢r 1o Rs.13.50cr,



To reduce the iconcentration risk, Company has diversified the portfolio mainly in to Gotd loan segment. Percentage of
Vehicle loan segment has reduced from 64.95% to 53.90% and Consumer Loan 2.92% to 4.27% during the FY 2022-
23. And on the other hand, percentage of Gold loan segment has increased from 19.90% to 27.54% and Micro Finance

increased from 12,23% to 14.29%.

Comparison of Interest income

{in crores)

Interest Income FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 Increase/ (Decrease)
interest on Ggld loan 13.74 26.70 7.04
Interest on samruddhi loan 4,39 1.19 3.20
Interest receiyed-Edmax 0.01 0.28 -0.27
Interest on Cansumer loan 1.46 2.79 -0.70
Interest on Véhide loan 67.66 82.45 -14.78
Interest on Business loan 0.01 0.00 0.01
Interest on overdue - Vehicle loan 9.71 14,20 -4,49
interest on traders loan 0.00 0.00 0.00
Interest on Microfinance 15.06 9.44 6.14
Interest on overdue-Edmax -0.02 0.04 -0.00
Interest on Overdue - Traders loan 0.00 -0.60
Interest on traders loan (Max Yanijya) 1.31 0.50 0.80
Interest on overdue traders loan {Max Vanijya) 0.07 0.1¢ -0.02
Interest on oyerdue Samruddhi loan 0.50 0.19 0.3
interest on moratorium - Vehicle Loan -2.09 -3.00 0.9
Interest on moratorium - Consumer Loan Edmax 0.00 -0.00 0.00
Interest on moratorium - Micro Finance 1.19 -G.10 1.29
interest on moratorium - Consumer Loan 1.42 -01.59 1,97
Interest on Mératorium interest 1.11 3.16 -2.05
Interest on Vyapari Kshema 0.27 0.04 0.23
Interest on overdue-Vyapari Kshema 0.05 0.00 0.05
Interest on Mahita Kshema 0.27 0.27
Interest on overdue Mahila Kshema 0.0t . 0.01
Total 136.10 137.44 -0.11
Fee based income comparison (In crores)
Fee based Income FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22| Increase/ {Decrease)
Notice charge 0.18 0.15 0.03
Documentatipn charges-V0L 2.55 2.05 0.51
Documentatibn Charge-MF 0.01 0.01
Service charge vehicle loan 5.27 5.98 -0.71
income auto hoan finance 1.34 5.06 -3.72
Fore-closure charges cn traders loan 0.27 0.05 0.22
Processing fee -MF 1.52 0.60 0.92
Pracessing fae -CDL 0.17 0.18 -0.01
Pracessing charges - gold (oan 0.43 0.39 0.05
Processing charge-Edmax 0.02 -0.02
Pre-closure interest Edmax 0.00 0.00 -0.00
Processing charges(Samruddhi Loan} 1.12 0.41 0.71
0.06 0.02 0.04

Appraisal charges - Max Samruddhi




Processing feg (Max Vanijya) 0.43 0.25 0.19
Pre closure cﬁarges - Gold Loan 0.01 0.02 -0.01
pracessing charges (Vyapari Kshema) 0.05 0.03 0.02
Appraisal Charges (Vyapari Kshema) 0.00 0.00 0.00
Fore closure charges- Vyapari Kshern 0.04 0.00 0.04
Pre-closure charges-Mahila Kshema 0.02 0.02
Appraisal cha'rges-Mahila ¥shema 0.00 0.60
Processing Fee - Mahila Kshema 0.04 0.04
Total 13.50 15.20 -1.69

As a part of treasury management, we have reserved approximately Rs. 100 cr for redemption of sub-ordinate debt and
debentures during the financial vear 2022-23. The company had placed FD with other banks and thereby generated an
additional interest of Rs.3.40cr compared to the previous year.

Other income for the FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22 is as follows

Other Income FY 2022-13 FY 2021-22| Increase/ (Decrease)
Other incomé 0.55 0.14 0.41
Other charges 0.00 . 0.00
Discount Received 0.00 -0.00
Chitty divident - 0.00 -0.00
Round off 0.00 0.00 0.00
Collection aghinst loss on repossessed asset 0.99 0.20 0.80
Interest on fixed deposit 2.33 3.98 -1.65
Sundry writteln back 0.03 - 0.03
Transfer noting charges - subdebt 0.02 0.03 -0.01
Transfer noting charges - debenture .00 0.00 -0.00
Auction expehse received-GL 0.07 0.09 -0.02
Interest on income tax refund 0.13 0.00 .13
Auction expense received-Consumer Loan 0.00 0.00 (.00
News Paper publication charge 0.00 - 0.00
Staff Welfare Income 0.24 0.24
Collection against written off account-Vehicle loan 0.54 0.54
Collection agginst written off accaunt-Business Loan 0.32 - 0.32
Total 5.23 4.44 0.78

During the finangial year, the company has taken major steps to diversify the business from vehicle toan to gold loan. For

that the company has opened 27 new branches that leads an increase in employee benefit expenses,

Employee benefit expenses for the FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22 is as foltows:

Employee Benefits Expenses FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22| Increase/ {Decrease)
Salary ‘ 39.45 33.55 5.90
Provident fund 1.13 1.45 -0.33
ESI : 0.7% 0.65 0.06
Staff welfare expense 0.08 0.06 0.02
Group insurance 0.09 0.21 0.1
Individual actidental insurance policy 0.02 0.02 -0.00
Stipend 0.38 0.15 0.22
Gratuity 1.56 0.10 2.46
Staff incentive 1.05 0.18 0.87
Total ' 45.46 36.37 9.09




Cumuiative impact of doubling and yearly schemes has increased interest on sub-ordinate Debt and that reflected in finance
cost and impacted the cost of fund during the reported financial year. During the financial year 2022-23 there is redemption
of debentures and sub ordinate debts amounting to Rs.190 cr. company has put in ptace the plans to reduce the cost of fund
by infusing the equity capital and raising the fresh funds by way of Nan-convertible debentures and Sub ordinated debt at
significantly lawer interest rate.

Finance Cost for the FY 2022-23 and FY 2021-22 is as follows:

Finance cost, . FY 1022-23 FY 2021-22| Increase/ {Decrease)
Interest on subordinate debt 73.55 90.84 -17.29
Interest on debenture 4.00 5.33 -1.33
Interest on Innova loan 0.00 -0.00
Interest on TUV loan-Mahindra Finance 0.00 -0.00
Interest on GST - RCM 0.00 0.02 -0.01
Interest on QD Esaf 0.03 -0.03
Interest on OD Axis bank 0.05 . 0.05
Total 77.61 96,22 -18.62

To reduce the:concentration risk, Company has diversified the portfolio mainly in to Gold loan segment. Percentage of
Vehicle loan segment has reduced from 72.23% to 64.95% during the FY 2021-22. And on the other hand, percentage of
Gold loan segment has increased from 14,89% to 19.90%

Cur Portfolio for the FY 2023 and 2022 is as follows {In crores)

Loans and Advances Figures As on Figures As on Percentage of loan Percentage of loan
31.03.2023 31.03.2022 | with respect to Total | with respect to Total

. portfolio FY 2023 portfolio FY 2022

Vehicle Loan 303.06 427.72 53.90 64.95
Gold Loan 154 .83 131.04 27.54 19.90
Consumer Loan 2.59 15.01 0.46 2.28
Micro Finance 77.78 65.52 13.83 9.95
Consumer Loan - Branch channel 0.08 0.32 0.01 0.05
Business Loan 0.25 0.04
Traders Loan 0.10 0.12 0.02 0.02
Samrudhi Loan 17.52 12.16 3.12 1.85
Customer Buginess Loan 0.03 0.00
Traders Loan{Max Vanijya) 4.72 4.35 0.84 0.66
Vyapari Ksheina 0.77 2.02 0.14 0.31
Mahila Kshema 0.81 . 0.14 .
Total 562,26 658.55 100.00 100.00

Total outstanding has reduced from Rs.719.08 cr to Rs.658.55¢r. Covid19 pandemic has impacted the profitability of the
company during the reported financial year by way of providing additional provision for NPA and NPA has increased from
Rs.67.34cr to Rs.72.68cr.However, the company has taken major steps to improve collection efficiency and thereby to reduce
NPA. A new départment has been formed especially for monitoring the collecion. Credit and Monitoring Department will
function as a monitoring authority for the purpose of reducing the NPA and ultimately to improve the collection efficiency.



NPA details are as follows

NPA Details
Figures as on 31.03.2023 Figures as on 31.03.2022
Loan Type Total| Gross NPA GNPA % Total Gross NPA GNPA %
outstanding Qutstanding
Vehicle Loan 303.06 41.12 13.57 427,72 56.78 13.28
Gold Loan 154.83 0.21 0.13 131.04 0.51 0.39
Consumer Ldan 2.59 0.60 23.05 15.01 6.81 45.33
Micro Finance 77.78 2.13 2.74 65.52 7.99 12.20
Consumer Lgan - Branch 0.08 0.08 99.90 0.32 0.07 23.36
channel
Business Loan 0.25 0.2 100.0¢
Traders Loan 0.10 0.10 100.00 0.12 0.12 100.00
Samrudhi Loan 17.52 0.59 3.35 12.16 0.06 0.46
Customer Business Loan 0.03 0.03 100.00
Traders LoanfMax Vanijya) 4.72 0.46 9.75 4.35 0.07 1.61
Vyapari Kshema 0.77 2.02
Mahila Kshera 0.81 .03 3.5 . .
Total 562.26 45.31 8.06 658.55 72.68 11.04
NPAIMPACT ON PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT DURING THE FY 2022-23
LOAN TYPE TOTAL GROSS NPA GNPA % TOTAL NPA ADDITIONAL.
OUTSTANDING PROVISION PROVISION
FOR THE FY
2021-22 (IN CR)
Vehicle Loan, 303.06 41.12 13.57 8.00 -5.28
Gold Loan 154.83 0.21 0.13 0.18 0.01
Consumer Laan .59 0.60 23.05 0.08 -3.93
Micro Finance 77.78 2.13 2.74 0.36 -5.45
Consumer Loan Branch 0.08 0.08 99.90 0.0 0.00
channel
Business Loan -0.25
Traders Loan 0.10 0.10 100.00 0.10 -0.02
Samrudhi Loan 17.52 0.59 3.35 0.06 .05
Customer Buginess Loan -0.03
Traders Loan[Max Vanijya) 4.72 0.46 9.75 0.09 0.08
Vyapari Kshema 0.77
Mahila Kshema 0.81 0.03 3.51 0.00 0.00
Total 562.26 45,31 8.06 8.88 -14.81

The company Has incurred operating cash luss for the period ended 31.03.2022. The provision for Broken period interest for
Sub debt and Debentures has reckoned for the first time during the FY2021-22. Eliminating such impact, company has
earned a Cash Profit of Rs 9.01cr.




Amount fn cr

Cash Profit f¢r the Year ended 31,03,2023

Operating cash profit

Net Loss for the period ended 31.03.2023 -21,54
Add: Non-cash items
Depreciation and amortization expense 4.1
Additional provision-Yehicle loan -10.41
Additional provision-MF -2.00
Deferred Revenue exp W/off 5.43
Provision for Std and NPA -15.08
Write off 41.36
Provision for cash shortage Exp A/c 0.03
Provision for Spurious Gold A/c 0.13
Provision forT'gratuity 2.53
4.64

During the FY2022-23, Debt equity ratic has decreased from 6.86 to 6.18. The impact in ratio has reported due to the
infusian of Shareholder’s Equity by way of rights during the previous financial year. The company have a plan to infuse the
Equity share capital during the FY 2023-24 also, Acceptable current ratio is 2. Company’s diversification policy will help to
increase the current assets and thereby to improve current assets ratio. As compared to previous year current asset ratio has
reduced from 1,71 to 1.09. due to increase in the Current Maturities of Long-Term Liabilities and reduction in current assets.
Apart from this, cost of borrowings will get reduced by raising the NCDs/Sub debts at significantly lower interest rates. This
will alsc help to improve current ratio. A company having a quick ratio higher than 1, can instantly get rid of its current

liabilities. Company’s quick ratio is 1,40 which shows the company’s liquidity pasition to pay off debts.

S| No | Ratigs 31st March 2023 |  31st March 2022
1 Current Ratio 1.06 1.71
2 Quick Ratio 1.06 1.7
3 | cash Ratio 0.13 0.46
4 Shortdterm liability to Total assets 51.79 32.82
5 Shart-term liability to Long term assets 114.15 74.96
6 NCDishort term) to Total assets 2.08 0.91
? Short+term liability to Total liabilities 51.79 32.82
8 Short%term liability to Total liabilities (excluding share holders fund) 58.49 36.66
9 Long-lterm assets to Total assets 45,37 43.78
10 Debt-Equity ratio {in times}) 6.18 6.86
1t Debt service coverage ratio (in times) 0.29 1.26
12 Return on equity ratio {in %) -26.09% -34.71%
13 Net cépital turnaver ratio {in times) 7.97 0.77
14 Net profit ratio { in %} -14.27% -24.36%
15 Return on capital employed (in %) 71.75% 77.46%

The provision for Broken period interest for Sub debt and Debentures has provided during the FY2022-23. As a result, cost

of debt has increased from 13.57% to 13.72% in the financial year 2021-22

Weighted Ave:rage cost of debt

Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Subordinated Debt 13.01% 12.82%
Debenture 0.71% 0.75%
Total j 13.72% 13.57%




HI. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT,
© INCLUDING NUMBER

OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED.

{a) In 2022 as part of business expansion and development,

SI No

PARTICULARS

KERALA

KARNATAKA

Andhra Pradesh

Branch expansion

9

5

3

De'partrnent Expansion

Business Loan, Gold Loan

Business Loan, Gold Loan

Business L.oan, Gold Loan

794

78

11

Staff Increase

Place; Thrissur
Date: 14.06.2023

For MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LIMITED

CIN No.: U65921KL1995PLC009E§1

Mr, Manoj YR (DIN:02552307) Mr. Kottarath Nandakumar(DIN:03314802)

Whole- Time Director

Managing Director




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD, REGD.OFFICE:1ST
FLOOR, CEE| KAY PLAZA, OPP. METROPOLITAN HOSPITAL, KOORKENCHERY,
THRISSUR-680 007.

1.Report on Audited Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audi the accompanying financial statements of M/S.MAXVALUE CREDITS AND
INVESTMENTS LTD, REGD.OFFICE:1ST FLOOR, CEE KAY PLAZA, OPP. METROPOLITAN
HOSPITAL, KDORKENCHERY, THRISSUR-680 007(The company), which comprise the Balance sheet
as at 3 1st March 2023, the statement of profit & loss, cash flow statement for the year ended, on that date and

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s

responsibilitiey for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in atcordance with the code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in

accordance with these requirements and the code of ethics.

We believe thft the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the standalpne financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters.

We have detgrmined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our report for the year ended 31st

March, 2023



Emphasis of M#tter

We have determined that, there are no matters to Emphasis which have material effect on profit for the Year in
our report.

Information other than the financial statements and auditors’ report thereon

The Company’s{board of directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Business Responsibility Report but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance colllusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial
statements or OlPI knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.
If, based on the| work we have performed, we conclude that if there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We/’/,_\\ |

. '3

\\ g q\'t‘ ;
The company’s Board of Directors is responsiblé%ﬁaﬁ/ers in Sec.134(5) of the companies Act 2013,
(“the Act ) with respect to the preparation of the financial statements, that give a true and fair view of the
financial positibn, financial performance of the Company in accordance with the Accounting principles

generally accepted in India, Including the Accounting Standards specified Under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibilities also includes the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provision of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting the frauds
and other irregplarities ; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent ; and design ,implementation and maintenance of internal financial
control, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records
,Jrelevant to thg preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations,

or has no realiktic alternative but to do so.



. The board of dircl:tors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

3.Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We have taken

into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters which are required
to be included in|the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under.

We conducted ofir audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, as specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the aundit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

As part of an aydit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficjent and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

,.-/-"'::-““‘H
understanding of internal coptfol 1‘3\&6( o the audit in order to design audit procedures
def secfitn 143(3)(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are
_ er the company has adequate internal financial

efiess of such controls.

Eval
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditipns that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
lated disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
ion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s

. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going




" e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified

misstatements inj the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also providg those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably! be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the
matters commuhnicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most

significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulatidn precludes public disclosure about

the matter or when, in extremely rare circmnstanc/ = rmine that a matter should not be communicated

b

in our report

. e L
ause the adverse consequen T/Sf doi
I =

Y-

nefits of such communicatiof.©

Ie) ) -

An audit involyes performing procedures to obta%s

public interest

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the
financial statements that give true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion ¢n the financial statements.

4, Report op Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As requjred by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statemeTt on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.




" 2.' As required by the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Direction,
’ 2016, issued by the Reserve Bank of India in exercise of the powers conferred by sub-section (1A) of
Section 45MA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, we give in the “Annexure B”, an additional Audit

Report addressed to the Board of Directors containing our statements on the matters specified therein.
3. Asrequired by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

0
(@)
(iii)
(W)

)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

()

We have sought and obtained all the information’s and explanations, which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the company so far

app
No

from our examination of those books;

rt on accounts of any of the branch offices audited under sub section 8 of section 143 by
1t has been received by us and therefore no comments need to be made on the matter.
ance sheet, and statement of profit & loss account, cash flow statements dealt with by this

opinion there are no qualifigdlions g.‘} or adverse remarks relating to the

/ 2,

maintenance of accounts and other

With respect to-the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remyneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the
provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters included in the Auditor’s Report and to our best of our information
and Juccording to the explanations given to us:

) The company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements.

(ii) | The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

(iii)| There were no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund by the Company.




(iv) | The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

Address: Irihjalakuda For UNNIKRISHNAN & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Manoj K V, (Partner)

Membership No. 216003

Date: 14-0612023

UDIN:23216003BGTHIN7393




- ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 OF INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF
EVEN DATE TO THE MEMBERS OF M/s MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LIMITED
"ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST
MARCH, 202

In terms of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020, issued by the Central Government of India, in terms of
section 143(11)of The Companies Act, 2013, we further report, on the matters specified in paragraph 3 and 4
of the said Ordér, that ;-

1)

2)

3

(1) () The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including guantitative details
and situgtion of Property, Plant & Equipment.
(b) Agcording to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of thd records of the Company, The Company has maintained proper
records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

(i) ‘ According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records pf the Company, the Property, Plant & Equipment have been physically verified by the
managernent at reasonable intervals,

records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties shown in the financial statements are

(aii) Accovdigg to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
held in the name of the company.

s and on the basis of our examination of the
is\Property, Plant & Equipment or Intangible

(iv) According to the information and explanatiop
records of the Company, the company has/
assets or|both during the year.

records gf the Company, there are no proceed ave been initiated against the company for
holding benami property under The Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder and the details have been appropriately disclosed in the financial statements,

(i) The Company is a service company, primarily rendering financial services. Accordingly, it does not
hold any physical inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii}(a) of the Order is not applicable,

(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five
, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, clause
Order is not applicable.

(a) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3(111)(3) of the Order

are not appligable.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made,
guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in
the nature of loans and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(c) & (d) The company, being a Non-Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’), registered under provisions
of RBI Act, {1934 and rules made thereunder, in pursuance of its compliance with provisions of the said
Act/Rules, particularly, the Income Recognition, Asset Classification and Provisioning Norms, monitors
repayments ¢f principal and payment of interest by its borrowers as stipulated. In cases where repayment
of principal and payment of interest is not received as stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the
Company inicourse of its periodic regulatory reporting

(¢) Since the; Company’s principal business is to give loans, the provisions of clause 3(jii)(e) of the Order
are not appli¢able.
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According t
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(1) The Co
added tax d

our audit procedures and the information and explanation made available to us, the Company

the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
e Company, the company has not accepted any deposits from the public in terms of Section
any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the
applicable.

b the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the
of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of any of the services rendered by
. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

pany does not have liability i respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of excise and Value
ing the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed into GST.

According {o the information and explanations giV d-onthe basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accryed ifeaB ke be ks .of account in respect of undisputed
statutory dyes including Goods and Services Ta ff GSTERyeflient fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other mabegi} s ;' ues have generally been regularly

\'_/

deposited with the appropriate authorities.
According 1o the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable
(ii) According to records of the company, there are no statutory dues which have
not bedn deposited on account of any dispute except the following:
Period to
Amount
ame of Nature of which the Forum where .
¢ Statute Dues Ampunt (Rs) amount dispute is pending pal P;lounder
test
relates
Employees
Prpvident
Misc ?d Provident 19,86,920 2017.19 | High Court of 4,00,000
us Seetlaneo | pund Arrear N Kerala (Appeals) ”
Prpvisions
Agt, 1952

According tb the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no transactions that are not recorded in the books of account to be
surrenderedor disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961;

inion, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings to financial
banks, government and dues to debenture holders or in the payment of interest thereon to any

(1) Inouro
institutions,
lender.




‘(ii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by any bank or
financigl institution or other lender.

(iii) Accorfling to the information and explanations given to us by management of the Company has not
obtaingd any term loans. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

reported during the course of our audit, other than the instances of fraud noticed and reported by the
managemént in terms of the regulatory provisions applicable to the Company amounting to Rs 39.46
lakhs comprising of 10 instances.

(ii) Accorfling to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-Section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under
Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014 with the Central Government.

(iii) We hdve taken into consideration whistle-blower complaints, if any, received during the year by the
Company.

12) According [to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

13} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions entered
into with related parties are in compliance with section 177 & 188 of The Companies Act 2013 and the
details have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

14) (i) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the siZe and nature of its business.




. (ii) We have ¢

under aud

15)In our opi
entered in
year.

16) (i) The ¢

onsidered, during the course of our audit, the reports of the Internal Auditor(s) for the period
it in accordance with the guidance provided in SA 610 “Using the work of Internal Auditors”

ion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with directors, during the

mpany is required to be registered under section 45-IA of The Reserve Bank of India Act,

1934. Accprdingly, clause 3(xvi)}(i) of the Order is not applicable.

(11) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housmg Finance activities w1thout a

ous during the course of audit, the Group
e 3(xvi)(d) are not applicable.

226.79 lak]

18) There has not been any resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.

19) According| to the information and explanations provided to us, on the basis of the financial ratios, aging

d dates of realization of financial assets and payment of ﬁnancial liabilities, other information

Place: Irinj
Date:14-06-2023

UDIN: 23216003BGTHIN7393

Membership No. 216003

F.R. NO: 0044608




. ANNEXURE B

TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board daf Directors of Maxvalue Credits And Investments Limited,

We have audit

the Balance Sheet of Maxvalue Credits And Investments Limited for the year ended as on

March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended annexed
thereto, As reqpired by the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors’ Report (Reserve Bank) Direction,

ii.

jit.

iv.

vi,

vii.

viii.

ing to the information and explanations given to us, we provide herewith, a statement on

ified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the aforesaid directions;

te of registration as provided in section 45-1A of the RBI Act, 1934,

The Company is entitled to continue to hold the Certificate of Registration in terms of the Asset/
Income paitern as on March 31, 2023

deposit]

VAT
1 e%,

HE R z
T3 5 T ! L S . .
The Company has not accepted any pubii&;_ P _sﬁ‘m,;thc period under review.

Rt

fing to the information and explanation g.ivé'ﬁ to us, the Company has complied with the

of the

pliance with the minimum CRAR as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India.

The Campany has furnished to RBI the annual statement of Capital Fund, risk assets and risk assets

ratio within the stipulated period.

The Company has not been classified as NBFC-MFI for the year ended March 31, 2023




The report has bden issued pursuant to the Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditors” Report (Reserve
Bank) Direction,|2016 and is issued to the Board of Directors of the Company as required by Paragraph 2 of
such directions and should not be used for any other purpose.

Place: Irinjalakuda For UNNIKRISHNAN& Co.
Chartered Accountants
Date: 14-06-2023
UDIN: 23216003BGTHIN7393 Manoj K V, (Partner)

Membership No. 216003

F.R. NO: 0044608




TO THE IN
FINANCIAL

Referred to in

ANNEXURE C

DEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
STATEMENTS OF MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD.

our report of even date;

¢ Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
ct, 2013 (“the Act”)

Report on

t
Companies J
|
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/S. MAXVALUE CREDITS
AND INVESTMENTS LTD REGD.OFFICE:1ST FLOOR,CEE KAY PLAZA, OPP.
METROPOLITAN HOSPITAL, KOORKENCHERY, THRISSUR-680007 (“The Company”) as of 31
March 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year

ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based

on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components o
Financial Rep¢
include the des

effectively for

internal control stated in the Guidance Note an Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
prting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAT’). These responsibilities
ign, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating

ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and

completeness

required under

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

ility is to express an opinion on internal financial controls over financial

on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of

Our responsi

reporting
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing,
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial contn]ols and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was

established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial

controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over




financial repofting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinion pn the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with reference to these
Financial Statements

A company'sjinternal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone financial

statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting

o))

@

3

conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion} the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over

financial repotr:ing with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal control over financial

reporting critetia established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated




in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute

of Chartered Acdountants of India.

Address: Irinjalakuda

Date: 14-04

UDIN: 23216003BGTHIN7393

For UNNIKRISHNAN & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Mangj K V, (Partner)
Membership No. 216003

K.V. (Partner)
26003, FRN. ON44R0S



MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD
REGDOFFICEST FLOOR,CEE KAY PLAZA, OPP. METROPOLITAN HONPITAL,

KOORKENCHERY, THRISSUR-6800(7 CIN-LUs3921KLI995TL.CO09S8]

BALANCFE SHEET AS AT 31.03.2023
Figures As on Figures As on
Particulars 31.03,2023 31.03.2022
(Ry.in Lakhs) {Rs.in L.akhs}
I. FQUITY AND LIABILITIES
i. Shargholders' funds
(1) Shard capital 2 16475.98 13377.39
|(bj Reserves and surplus 3 -8881.10 -6726.72
2. Share¢ application money pending allotment
3. Non-gurrent liabilities
(2) t.ong-term borrowings 4 i8313.14 41619.720)
(b) Olhclt {long-term lhabilities 3 5769.80 6200.03
(¢) Long erm provisions 6 74.37 74.37
4. Current liabilitics
(a) b riadyg pas ables -
Nlh] Other current lighititios 8 31940063 23860611
(¢} Short-lerm provisions 9 1377.30 3R5T80
TOTAL 66279.13 5416897
If. ASSETS '
l. Nonpcurrent assets
l(2) Property. Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets
(i) Property. Plant and Equipment {0 2838.66 2968.08
(ii) [|Intangible assets 10 24.48 30.604
(b} Deflerred tax assets (net) 11 483.42 308.62
(c) Lonh;-tcrm toans and advances 12 26724.55 33676.21
2. Cuvrent assets
(a) Curpent investments 13 - 3.3
(b Cash and cash eguivalents ta L1810 1 2620.08
(e} Shart-term loans and advanees 12 2051507 ERERER
() Ohper current assets f BN B R B 2712.067
(¢ } Trage Receivables 16 - .
TOTAL 66279.13 84468.97
Accounting pelicies and notes on account |
Place:Ininjalakuda
Date: f ), [95} 2022 f‘ M
I e il P &Ag
Nandakumar Kottarath (Managing Diréclor) - - - For Unnik ngl\: 0
(DIND3314802) Chartered Ac"c\d,lnlan{s
Manoj K Vijayan (Partner)
e o M. No:216003,FRN:0044608
Manoj MR (Whole Time Director) ®
{[HN (08019359 Far Unnit <
Charters
Subint Naras ;u:am\I\'l(‘hicl‘ i ial OFTcery
Akhi] Bhaskaran Vigdyan(Cympany Secretary)




MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS I'TD
REGD.OFFICEIST FLOOR.CEE KAY PLAZA, OPP. METROPOLITAN HOSPITAL,

KOORKENCHERY, THRISSUR-680007 CIN-U6392IKLI9ISPLCHESR]
PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2023

Figures As on

Figures As on

Accounting policies and notes on account

Particulars T\I"‘:“ 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
) (Rs.in Lakhs) {Rs.in Lakhs)

I Revenuy lrom operations 17 [4965.60 15263.25
Il Other infome I8 532337 445,14
0. Towal Révenoe (I HID 15488.97 15708.39
V. Lxpensgs:

L:mplovde benetits expense 19 4546.82 363672

IFinance post 20 7760.58 9620.76

Deprecigtion and amortization cxpense 10 410.63 385.04

Other expenses 21 5102.63 5814.52

‘Total Expenses 17820.66 19457.03
vV Profit before exceplional and extraordinary

items angl tax (I1H11-1V) -2331.69 -3748.64
VI Exceptipnal ltems
VI Profit before extraordinary items and Tax (V-VI) -2331.69 <3748.64
VI Extraorflinery ilems 2.50 .39
(X Profit helore tax {(VI-VIE) -2329.19 -3748.23
N Taxexpense:

(1) Current tax

{2 Deferred tax il -174.80 -RLK7
X1 Profit 7 tloss) for the period ( 1X-X) -2134.39 -3717.38
X1l Eamingsg per equity share:

(1) Basi (0.65) (1.19)

{2) Diluted (0.65) (1.19)

1

Place:Irinjalakuda

Date: 14 [ 9 &f 2023

T

Nandakumar[Kottarath (Managing Director)
(DIN:03314802)

S S :
Manoj VR (Whole Time Directory,
(DIN :080193559)

Salini Naraydnan K¢€hief Financial Officer)

Akhil Bhaskdran Vijayan(Company Seccretary)

For Unnikris m%r& Ca
Chartered Aogaghtants
Manoj K Vijavan {Partner)
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Place: Irinjalahnda I

Baw: |.L Lq: ) :
4 ’O !Z’D 273 ._6/%;’/_,;”““

\anilnkumac kot PR ¥ anaging Director)
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NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET as en 31.03.2023

A AT LN R Y

|amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholdess

NOTE2 Figures as at 31.03.2023 Figures as at 31.03.2022
SHARE CAPITAL Number (Rs.in Lakhs) Number {Rs.in Lakhs)
a) Authorised Capital
99.90,00,008 Equity Shares of 5/- each 998000000 4990000 308000000 19900.00
10,00.600 Preference Shares of 10/- each 1000000 100.00 1000000 100.60
S0000.00 20000.00
B Issued,Subscribed, Called-up& Paid-up capital Figures as at 31.03.2023 Figures as at 31.03.2022
Number (Rs.in Lakhs) Number (Rs.in Lakhs)
Equily shares of 5/- each fully called up and paid up 320519507 1647598 311551828 15577.59
Preference shares of 10/- each fully called up and paid up
Less: calls in arrears
TOTAL{NOTE 1) 329519507 16475.98 311551828 1557759
NOTE 2.1- Reconciliation of of shares outstanding at beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Particulars Equity Shares Preference Shares
Figures Asan | Fipores Ason | Figures As on Figures As on
31.03.2023 31032022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Opening number of shares oulstanding 32.95.19,507]  31,15,51,828 NIL
Shares Izsued 1.79.67.679
Closing number of shares outatanding ( Face valus of 5/-) 329519507 31,15,51,828 NI NI
Closing number of Equity shares outstanding after Share split up (Face valoe of
10/- to 5/-) 32,95.19.507]  31,15,51.828 NIL| NIL
Terms/tights atiached to equily shares
'The Company has only one class of equity shares having Tace value 5/-per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share. All these shares have the samie rights and preferences with respect to payment of
dividend, repayment of capital and voting.In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential




e nomber and class of bonus shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares ﬁmﬁ back during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
Nusaber of Bonus Shares Issued NIL NIL NIL NIL
Number of Shares issued for consideration other than cash NIL NI NIL NIL
Number of Shares bought back NIL NIL NIL NIL
NOTE 2.2 - Members h more than 5% of share holdin;
N 31-03-2023 31.03.2022

ame Na of share o ol share No ol share
Holdings Holdings Holdings % of share Holdings
Maxvalue Capital 5,07,61,334 18.14% 5,50,01,114 17.68%
Disclosure of sharebolding of promoters as at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
el
8 No sy +>\,&__.L/ !
Promcler name ff x & ¥ NA#
Class of Shares ﬁ/ﬁ&/ \ .om&q Equity
At the end of the year C.\L mﬂm No. of Shares
. *oof iotal shares

At the beginning of the year No. of Shares

*yof to1al shares

Note: #The Company does not have promoters as on 315t March 2022 & 31si March 2023.

W




NOTE 3
RESERVES & SURPLUS

Figures As on

31.03.2023 {Rs.in

Lakhs)

Figures As on  31.03.2022

{Rs.in Lakhs)

a)

b)

<)

d)

€)

Profit and Loss account
Balance as per last Balancesheet
Add Profit for the year
General Reserve set off against accumulated loss
Less: Appropriations
)Transfer to General Reserve
ii} Proposed Dividend
1ii) Divinded Distribution tax
iv)Depreciation Adjustment
v)Transfer to Statutory Reserve Fund

General Reserve

Balance as per last Balancesheet

Less : General Reserve set off against accumulated loss
Statutory Reserve
Balance as per last Balancesheet
Add: Transfer from Profit & Loss Account
Reserve Fund
Balance as per last Balancesheet
Less ; Write back made during the year
Share Premium

Share Premium
Securities Premium

-1654.10
-2154.39

76.31

-9808 4R

76.31

851.08

-3936.72
-3717.38

76.31

-1654.10

76.31

851.08

TOTALNOTE 3

-8881.10

-6726.72




Nog-Current Portion Current Maturities
Flgures Ax
NOTE4 -
TERM on Figures As on Figures As on Figures As on
LonG LIABILITIES 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(R3.in Lakhs) | (Rsin Lakhs) {Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs.n Lakhs)
Secured Borrowings
a) Debentures 1113.55 268425 1378.00 767.35
Un Secured Borrowings
a) Sub-Ordinated Debt 17399.59 38935.45 27076.78 18308.31
TOTAL{NOTE 4) 18513.14 415619.78 28454.78 19075.66
Note : Agareate amount of Loans guaranteed by dircctors
Aggregate arount of Loans puaranteed by others

Notes on Non Convertible Debentures {(NCDs) issued under Private Placement.

Nature of Securitles: Debenitures Secured by a floating charpe on the book debis of the

Details of rate of interest and maturity pattern for debenture from the date of the balance sheet are s under

ing 2 market value not kss than 110% of outstanding batance of debentures

2023
Redeemable at par within %ﬁ?z o d Rate of Interest
o // »=10==11.5 »11.5<=)1.5 =12.5<=13.5 >13.Sxulf Total
| Above 5 years \\ W.\ A /,/ - -
4 Yearto § years IETER -l 254.00 254.00
2 Yeario 4o AR A ) : :
2 Yearto 3 years NN 2 324,50 . 324.50
1 Year to 2 yoars N Aoy 358.05 - 177.00 - 535.05
Less than | year SRR A - 1036.00 327.00 15.00 1378.00
Total 936.55 1036.00 204.00 15.00 2491.55
Ax on 31.03.24027
Redecmable at par within »=10<=11.5 F1LE<15.8 wﬂu..nm“—nﬁﬂ:s >13.5<=18 Total
Above 5 years - -
4 Year to 5 years - -
3 Yenr to 4 vears 585.50 - - 585.50
2 Year to 3 years 431.55 10.00 177.00 668.55
1 Year to 2 years - 1103.20 327.00 - 1430.20
Less than | year - 648.75 12.60 106.00 767.35
Total 1067.05 1761.95 $16.60 106.00 3451.60
Notes om Subordinais Debi buued by the Company.
Detadls of rate of interest and maturity pattern for saixdcbt from the date of the balance sheet are as under:
As on 31.03.202]
- Rate of Interest
Maturity Date A L O Mt T} i, & L4 12 5ewi}.5 1-5emls Fotut-
Above 3 years 156.75 511.00 T67.75
4 Yearto 5 years 2436.60 3220.45 5657.05
3 Year to 4 years 15.50 216.97 232.47
2 Year to 3 years 276.72 £333.32 - 1616.04
1 Year to 2 years 3808.26 556.50 A767.52 - 2132.28
Less than ) year 11782.84 9225.63 606026 4.03 27076.78
Total 18476.67 15167.87 1B827.78 EX 44476.17

DI bt
.




As on 3183, 2821
Rate of Interest
Maturity Date S=lbe=ILS *115<-13% *12.5<-13.8 SE=T Total
Above 5 years - 1250.00 - - 1250.00
4 Year 1o 5 years 15.50 216.97 232.47
3 Year 1o 4 yeans 276.72 1333.32 - 1610.04
2 Year to 3 years 3808.26 556.50 4767.52 9132.28
1 Year to 2 years 11737.20 $946.56 65026,90 - 26710.66
[Tows than | yoar 3822.20 6818.33 4549.15 3118.54 1330831
Total 196%9.97 19121.68 15343.57 3118.54 57243.7¢
MNoa-Current Portion Current Maturitics
NOTES F
igures As on Figares As on Figmres As on Figures As on
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES 31032023 31032022 31,03.2023 31.03.2002
(Rain Lakhs) (Re.in Lakhs) (Ra.in Lakhs) (Rs.in Lakhs
Chitti Liability Z = - IFo.u.o.
Interest Payabls On Bond 557792 592247 355282 3812.27
Intersst Payable On Debsuturs prmne 191.88 277.55 226.34 146.37
TOTAL(NOTE 8) AN g 5§769.80 6200.03 3779.16 3958.94
(AR DN
77 38N
== . Figures As on Figures As on
NOTE 6 z 0 31032023 3033002
LONG TERM PROVISIONS 2L R (Ra.in Lakis) (Rs.in Lakhs)
Provision for Leave encashment Nan A 74.37 74.37
TOTAL(NOTE &) N s/ 74.37 7437
e LR T2
T Figures As an Figures As on
NOTE 7
TRADE PAYABLES m._..p....uﬁem.. mu_...“uﬁueﬁ_ )
my for trade les ing 83 at March 31, 2023 is as follows:
Particulars Outstanding for following period from due date of payment
Unibilled Lews than 1 Year 1-2 years 2-3 ywars More than 3 years
| (i MSME
(i) Others
| (iily Disputed duss - MSME
{iv) Dispuled dues -Others
Total of the above
| Ageing for trade payables ¢ ding as at March 31, 2022 i az follows:
Particulars
Unbilled Less than | Year 1-2 years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years
(i) MSME
(i) Others T
{idi) Disputed dues - MSME
tiv) Dispured dues -Others
Tatal of the above




NOTE 8 Figures Ason | Figures Ason
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 31.03.2023 31.02.2022
(Rs.in Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)

Administrative Expenses Payable 3.53 320
Advance Emi - Edmax 037 0.84
Advance Emij - Vehicle Loan 98.00 11233
Advance Equated Daily Instalment 24.73 26.59
Advance Ewi - Business Loan 38.13 30.36
Auction Surplus Payable 0.08 0.08
Audit Fee Payable 4.64 6.51
Business L.oan Disbursement Control A/C - 55.09
Collection Agency Security Deposit 61.86 49.50
Current Maturities Of Long-Term Liabilities { Note 4 & 5) 32233.94 2303461
Electricity Charges Payable 1.08 196
Emd Deposit - Gold Loan - 57.00
Esi Payable 7.03 7.64
Ex Gratia Payable To Loan Customers 10.85 10.85
Group Mediclaim Refundabie 271 2n
st Payable 27.08 4459
Incentive Payable 79.83 53.82
Insurance Payable Mf 0.25 5.59
Loan-Neft/Cheque/Dd-Cancel/ Retum A/C 14.39 1930
Locker Deposit 020 -
Marketing Expenses Payable - Two Wheeler Loan - 0.74
Payable Te Product Business Loan (Pbl) - 340
P{ Payable 1535 2136
Profession Tax Payablc 035 0.32
Rent Payable 57.19 73.12
Retention Money Payable G.85 10.59
Salary Payable 2143 1.04
Salary Retained 13.57 24.04
Share Applicaton Mooey 0.66 -
Staff Welfare Payable 112 0.48
Stamp Duty Payable - Gold Loan (Kamataka) 1.06 1.32
Sundry Creditors{Sub Schedule 2) 11342 67.32
Sundry Deposit .26 3.14
Surplus On Auction- Gold Loan 22.34 16.19
Travelling Allowance Payable 4.14 5.66
TCS Payable - 0.07
TDS Cess 0.01 0.01
TDS Payable 79.19 89.75
TOTALNOTE 8) 32949.63 23866.14




Figures As Figures As
NOTE % on on
SHORT TERM PROVISIONS 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs.in Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)
Additional Provision Restructure-Mf - 200.86
Additonal Provision Restructure-Vehicle Loan 548 1046.39
Provision For Gratuity 260.22 7.12
Provision For Npa 888.24 2369.14
Provision for Spurious Gold A/ 13.33 -
Provision For Standard Assets 206.78 234.35
Provision for cash shortage 3.25 00
TOTAL(NOTE 9) 1377.30 3857.86
Figures As Figures As
NOTE 11 on on
DEFERRED TAX ASSET 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
e {Rs.in Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)
A) Deferred Tax Liability - -
In Respect Of Depreciation gﬁ RED -\\\ - -
Provided During The Year " - -
B)Deferred Tax Asset 308.62 27775
In Respect Of Depreciation 174.80 30.87
Adjusted [n Retained Eamings - -
Reversed During The Year - -
TOTAL(NOTE 11) 483.42 308.62




Non-Current Portion

Current Partion

Figures As| Figures As
Total As on on on Figures Ason | Figures As on
NOTE 12 LOANS AND ADVANCES Total As on 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
{BRs.in Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)| (Rs.in Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)
Secured
Gold Loan 1548349 13104.24 - - 15483.49 13104.24
Vehicle Loan 30305.73 42772.32 21594.75 30147.31 871098 12625.01
Unsecured
Business Loan - 24,14 - - - 24.74
Consumer Loan 259.14 1501.50 - 10.71 259.14 1490.79
Consumer Loan - Branch Channel 7.85 31.94 - - T.85 31.94
Customer Business Loan - 277 - - - 277
Mahila Kshema 80.87 - - - 80.87 -
Micro Finance 7717778 6552.34 5129.79 3518.19 264798 303414
Samrudhi Loan 1751.93 1216.07 - - 1751.93 1216.07
Traders Loan 10.11 11.72 - - 10.11 11.72
Traders Loan(Max Vanijya) 47238 43501 - - 47238 43501
Vyapan Kshema 76.76 202.34 - - 76.76 202.34
maNNa.@&I 65854.99 26724.55 33676.21 29501.50 32178.77
Other Advances:
Advance To Staff - - - -
Advance To Supplier - - 7.13 6.40
Advance To Twl Hub Alappuzha - - 0.00 -
Advance To Twl Hub Calicut - - 0.01 -
Advance To Twl Hub Edapally - - 0.05 -
Advance To Twl Hub Emakulam - - 0.02 -
Advance Ta Twl Hub Kollam - - 0.02 -
Advance To Twl Hub Malappuram - - 0.02 -
Advance To Twl Hub Thrissur - - 0.01 -
Advance Te Twl Hub Trvandrum - - 0.0] -
Mveil Employees Gratuity Fund Trust - - 0.06 0.06
PF Arrear Advance - - 4.00 -
Salary Advance - - - 297
TA Advance To Staff - Kamnataka - - 0.14 0.14
Travelling Expense - Advance - - 0.83 2.38
Vehicle Loan - Trade Advance - - 127 -43.31
SubTotal - - 13.57 -31.36
TOTAL 26724.55 33676.21 29515.07 32147.41
{A)Secured-Comsdered-Good 21354775 30147 31 24194 48 2572925
(B)Unsecured Considered Good 312979 3528 90 5320.59 6418.16
(C)Doubtful - - - C-
(13) Loans And Advances Due By Directors Or Officers Of The Company Or Anv Of Them Either Severally Or Jointly With - - - -
(E) Loans And Advances Due By Partnership Firms Or Private Companies Respectivelv In Which Director [s A Partner Or A - - - -
TOTAL (NOTE 12) 26724.55 33676.21] 29515.07 32147.46




Figures As on ~Figures As on
NOTE 13 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
CURRENT INVESTMENTS (Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs.In Lakhy)
Kuri [nvestment( Trisiva Kuries Pvt. Ltd ) - 5.30
TOTAL{NOTE 13) - 20
Aggregate Value Of Quoted Investments .
Market Value Of Quoted Investments
Aggregate Value Of Unquoted Investments
Fi As on Flgures As on

Mmﬂ H,S CasH ' Emﬂwﬁu uuﬂu‘ueﬁ

EQUIVALENTS (Rs.in Lokhs) (Rs.in Lakhs)
) Cash:
Cash-in-hand 247.69 278.59
b) Balances with Scheduled Banks :
Bank Accounts {indian Bank -Hexd Office 6481879736} 51.99 302.28
Bank Accounts (Thiruvillwamala (Sib A\C No 0081073000030733)) 10.29 2.15
Bank Accounts (Sib-Pulpally) 0260073000000541 2.02 0.60
Bank Accounts (6482289703 Indian Bank - Koorkkanchery) 48.22 8.63
Bank Accounts (Hdfe-Ho)Twl-50200023217266 56.84 112.10
Bark Accounts {Sib-Shomur )} 770073000000066 20.53 1.34
Bank Accounts {Sib-Kuzhalmennam) 0735073000000078 5.05 0.57
Bank Accounta(Sib-Kozhinjampara) 0639073000021601 7.35 0.95
Bank Accounts {Federal-Cherpu) 15700200002085 10.80 .82
Bank Accounts(Hdfc.Head Office)50200022884287 4391 4914
Bank Accounts {Federal-Chatharmur) 12780200010836 19.37 173
Bank Account Money Gram-Xpress Money A/C - Head Office )91 7020065859858 374 317
Bank Accounts {(Axis Bank Salary Account-Ho)?1 7020069612276 52,65 24.08
Bank Accounts (Federal Bank - Rajakkad)1 7460200002225 1.08 091
Bank Acoounts (Federa! Bank - Perambra J141 50200003538 22.20 0.67
Bank Accounts{Tw) Federal Bank A/C - 14670200012163) 180.34 76.52
Bank Accounts (Federal Bank - Head Office)14570200012106 3383 59.74
Bank Accounts {Axis-Nilambur Y1 302000993 | $64 027 0.23
Bark Accounts (Federal Bank-Koduvally)1 0590200206736 4,82 0.59
Bank Accounts {Federal Bank - Thodupuzha Y20370200000969 13.43 137
Bark Accounts (Indian Bank - Kattakada)6610987908 3943 0.1
Bank Accounts{ Axis Bank - Thalassery)518020019273721 3393 122
Bank Accounts{Axis Bank - Kanhangad)?1 8020021339996 16,29 0.28
Bank Accounts (Federal- Vaikom )10960200004847 0.38 0.07
Bank Accounts{ Axis Bank - Kanmagappally Y91 8020025360859 16.48 8.70
Bank Accounts (Federal Bank- Nevyatinkara) 1440020000339 1.28 0.00
Bank Accounts( Axis Bank - Kasargod)?1 8020026315584 0.06 0.35
Bank Accounts { Axis Bank Incentive Account-Ho)918020027676446 4.08 1.75
Business Loan (Axis Bank Account- Ho)91 8020028743705 763 1.15
Bank Accounts {Axis Rank - Vadakara)91302029516458 4.24 .24
Bank Accounts { Federal Bank - Edavannapara J16000200002550 5.38 043
Pank Accounts { Axis Bank - Adoor)¥1 8020039300285 26.19 021
Pank Aceounts! Axis Bank -Nedumangad) 918020037014430 025 039
Fank Aecsunts Federal- Tripravar } 142500006003080 0.31 4.80
Bank Accounts { Fedaral Bank - Pennthalmanna) 1 8370200006773 3eh 023




Bank Accounts { Axis - Nadakavu ) 918020032304712 12.25 0.39
Bank Accounts (Axis Bank- Maxvalue Dc) 91 8020044811356 - 7.10
Bank Accounts(Axis Benk- Twl) 913020028868260 61.30 54.40
Bank Accounts (Axis Bank - Malappuram) 918020042185190 519 0.95
Bank Acoounts (Federal- Mundakkayan ) 1397020001 2952 2.59 091
Bank Accounts ( Federa] Bank - Ottapalam )14310200012513 3.69 048
Bank Accounts { Federal Bank - Thirumals ) 20390200001254 1871 298
Bank Accounts Axis Bank (Edmex-Margin Amount Transfer YHeod Office 91802005 1594801 1.06 148
Bank Accounts { Federal Bank - Munnar) 0100200006506 033 1281
Bank Accounts ( Hdfc - Tw] Head Office) 50200032323161 33.48 3083
Bank Accounts {Axis Bank - Mavelikara) 918020066750976 10.62 070
Bank Accourits (Axtis Bank - Pattambi) 1802006839675 2.50 069
Bank Accounts (Axis Bank- Kottayam Ro) 918020066492214 19.63 0.84
Bank Accounts { Axis Bank - Palayam) 918020067057667 18.83 033
Bank Accounts { Axis Batk - Perumbavoar ) 913020067092905 10.34 T 087
Bank Accounts (Axis Bank- Pathanamthitta) 913020068817578 13.76 1.07
Bank Accounts(Axis Bank- Calicut Ro) 918020068305999 6.68 031
Bank Accounis (Federal Bank- Kattappana) 1426020001 1009 - 5.08
Bank Acciunts {Axis Bank- Anjerichira) 918020063795512 10.05 071
Bank Accounts (Federal Bank - Thamarassery) 1467020001 2403 10.44 041
Bank Accounts( Axie Bank - Kalamassery }918020067429115 47.29 0.46
Bank Accounts { Fedecal Bank - Vadakkenchery)1 467020001 2450 10.22 300
Bank Accounts { Axis Bank - Kothamangalar 1918020074489644 6.52 1.90
Bank Accounts ( Federsl Bark - Kodakara)1 4670200012296 41.99 1.51
Bank Accounts { The Federal Bank Limited - Adimaly 11467020001 2353 560 1.71
Bank Accounts { Axis Bank - Chengannr Y91 8020066570528 20.64 4741
Bank Accounts ( Axis Bank - Pandalarn 191 3020067056952 032 2.02
Bank Accounts ( Federal Bank - Pirsvam ) 1467020001 2338 1497 1.14
Bank Accounts{ Federal Bank - Edakkara )146 70200012452 7.51 1.57
Bank Accounts{ Federal Bank - Nedumkandam 467020001 2486 1.64 1.29
Bank Accounts{ Axis Bank - Peroorkada 9l 8020079308896 i2.16 0.77
Bank Accounts (Federal Bank-Mananthavady)146 70200012361 0.95 3.65
Bank Accounts ( Federal Bank - Venjaramoodu) 146 70200012528 42 87 3.37
Bank Accounts { Federal Bank -Cheruplassery}] 467020002536 21.97 382
Bank Accounts(Federal Bank- Kumaly)] 5310200004352 2.97 838
Bank Accounts { Federal Bank - Chittur)14670200012569 47.10 6.32
Bank Accounts {Axia Bank- Sulthan Bathery)918020068672977 18.16 Q.73
Bank Accounts (Axis Bank - Alapurha ) 918020088834472 1.37 0.27
Bank Accounts( Federal Bank-Vengara )1 4670200012668 1.00 0.52
Bank Accounts{ Axis Bank- Kottarakkara Y91 8020087060441 0.34 4927
Bank Accounts{ Axis Bank - Narth Paravoor 1918020101 710639 628 0.26
Bank4 ta-{—doxin-Fianie — Cherthats Y- SOG4 781 (.22
Bank Accounts{ Federsl Bank - Anchal Y1 4670200012692 1.22 1.28
Bank Accounts{ Federal Bank - Pudunagaram )1 467020611 2437 .01 212
Bank Accounts{ Federal Bank - Karukachal 1467020001 2634 6.15 1.0]
Bank Accounts( Fsaf Bank-Marayur 200 0000020543 0.59 (42
Bank Accours [ Axis Bank Pool Account - Flead O1Fice WER2H R | 7583 RO m.z.w." RG]
Axis Bank-Westemn Union Monev Transfer- 91902(N843 22274 12 80} 2235



Axis Bank-Ria Money Transfer 91 3020084228135
Elappara Gramin Bank-40385111000566

Canary Bank-N R Mohalla(5151201000284)

Axis Bank -Trens Fasi(@19020087717526)

Carare Bank T Maresigura{D662201 0008133

Fedetal Bank Fannebanma(21110200001792)
Canara Bank Nanjangud (0597201001 266)

Canars Bank-Ashoknagar Mandya -2(0516201002350)
Canara Bank Hosshalli(516201002351)

Federal Bank Devanakalli {15290200001955)
Canara Bank Jayanagar Ro (2725214000002)
Canars Bank Jayanager 3Rd Block(2725201000184)
Canars Bank Gewnibidanur{770201000906)

Canara Bark Tayanagar Branch A/C{408201004042)
Axas Bank-Mangalore(919020095019130)

Auxdis Bank-Uduppi(91902009475668 k)

Axis Bank-Twwkwr Sadeshivanagar(919020094818537)
Canara Bank-Tumbkur Kyathasandra (5558214000001)
Syndicete Bank-Marasur(4603070004070)

Canara Bank-Holenarasipura(532201000402)
Canara Bank-Chikkaballapura (56402010001 24)
Axis Bank-Chunchunghatta (319020006638584)
Canara Bark-Haver) (2812201000452)

Canara Bank-Kr Mohalla {53820100L291)

Canars Bark-Channareyspataa (767201 0010400
Auis Bank Harihar(920020000719181)

Axis Bank Gold Loan {919020094641256)

Canara Bark-Puttun615201001203)

Axis Bank- Valanchery (920020001 230379)

Canarz Bank Dharwad (567201001109}

Axis Bank Pos (520020008441646)

Corporation Bank-Banasawadi (510101 007144332)
Esaf Bank-Head Office (202000000209013

Axis Bank Bbps-{920020036000266)

Kotak Mahindra Bank Debenture [ssue{9345063398)
South Indian Bak -Panamaram{399607 300000002107
Hdfe: Vendor Accowd(S02000400851300

Bank Accounts (Axis Fund Tranefer A/C-Head Office)92 020008192118
Canara Bank-Bagepalli-1 (09252010060758)

Canara Bank-Bagepalli-2 (921201008920)

Canara Bank-Pavagada (120000031780)

Federal Bank-Hubly(13380200017391

Canara Bank-Madanapalle (120000044621)

Bank-Gf Barode-Bark—Sira{ S49302 006002957

Canara Bark-Chamarajanagar 1 20000249837

Union Bank Of India-Keshwapura Hubli{ 586301010050284
Canara mwﬁ._.#umr\ﬁmﬁmuz 120000332870

Bank (¥ India-Bailahongal (1114207 1000 163

anara Fank-Rotor {1 2oikicds Ey

Canars Banb-Madahasira( ] 2o 230810

239 2.25
2.23 0.02
6.61 0.11
1.24 3.20
.12 011
9.05 0.5]
026 0.22
0.29 0.28
1.22 0.33
0.53 0.33
54.52 100.44
1.58 1.13
0.65 0.16
- 0.06
- 0.32
1.57 0.30
1.36 0.03
1.34 0.88
0.13 045
G6.32 0.10
017 0.27
29.23 0.20
1.64 0.12
0.21 0.12
0.35 0.48
0.38 053
13.83 2091
0.55 1.37
3.89 027
0.31 0.20
1.19 0.54
077 0.65
103.05 253638
11.16 10.02
266.50 10.48
0.84 0.35
3342 357
62.87 7297
0.31 1.33
0.28 0.01
0.85 015
027 0.18
0.09 Q.15
009 0.04
0.21 0.17
0.10 545
0.32 0.07
0.08 .44
026 233
0.7 103



Catholte Syrian Bank-Akshayanagan{052304370159195001) 0.42 0.39
Canara Bank-Belur{ 1 20000428640) 024 0.22
Federal Bank-Tiptar{ F9900200004109) 026 0.35
Bank Of Baroda -Mysore K G Koppal{89520200002022) - 0.45
(Canars, Bak-Sidlaghatta( 120000482487) 0.14 0.10
{Canara Bank-Hassar 120000501060) 0.66 0.17
Federal Bank-Kunigal(20700200001916) 021 0.31
Canara Bank-Doddaballapur{ 120000547384) 0.21 0.19
Canara Bank-Arakalagudu( 1200005588241} 0.20 0.28
Canara Bank-Mulbagal{ 1 26000608550) 0.42 .09
Axis Bank-Payment Gatewsy(921020051631648) 5.65 -
Canara Bank-Kollegal{ 120000761244) .23 0.05
Canara Bank-Tinupati( 12000091 5430) 0.10 1.21
Canara Bank-Mangalora-1{ 120000821927} 0.39 031
Canara Bank-Maddur Branch{ 120000941322) 0.16 0.13
Axis Bank-Davanagere(522020015581436) 1.27 1.00
Axis Bank-Horammas(922020018781 718) 0.26 -
Bank Accounts { Axis Bank - Kalpetta ) 922030025392899 0.08

Bark Accourits (Canara -Mysore K G Koppal)] 20001425680 021

Bank Accounts(Canara Bark - Shikaripura)) 20001497920 0.05

Od Account Axis Bank (322030013791021) 4.00

Buank Accounts( Axis Bank Rights Issue - Ho) 922020026462199 0.81

Barnk Accounts (Canara-Gundlupet) 120001550541 029

Bank Account!Canara Bank-Chittoor} 20001605490 0.23

Bark Accounts{ Axis Bank - Patakkad ¥22020036704377 10.52

Bank Account{Canara Bank.Palamaner)120001 711514 Q.52

Bank A (Federal-M puzha) 14670200013294 495

Bank Acvounts (Indian Bank - 7299542102) Credit & Recovery 0.06

Bank Account{Canara Bank-Sagar)1 20002003 141 0.27

Bark Accounts { Union Bank - Munavalli) 340701010033093 017"

Bark Accounts (Bandhan Bank - Twl - Head Office) FO220013123243 87

Bank Acconnt{Bank Of Maharashtra-Vadagoan Pelagavi)i0a33144535 0.13

Bank Accounts{ Axis Bank - Kattappans)322020037353480 1.38

Bank Account(Rank Of Bracds -41740200001683)-Hindupur Branch 529

Bark Account(Esaf Small Finance Bank-Pazhayannur)-20230000003007 27.66

Bank Account{Esaf Small Finance Bank-Pulpalti-20230000003347) 12.39

Bank Account-Ramansttukers Branch(Federal Bank A/C No.14650200010300) 225

Branch Bank accounts

¢) Deposit with Banks:

Indian Bark Account FT 606.53 2386.32
Esaf Bank FIY 36141 675202
AXis Bark D 1050.29 1507.53
Kotak FD 50.55 150.00
TOTALNOTE 14) 4448.46 12620.08




NOTE 15 Figures Ason|{ Figures Ason
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs.in Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)
Adithya Gold 0.04 -
Business Loan Collection Control A/C 75.27 65.52
Due From M/S Ro Marketing 1.34 267
Group Mediclaim Recoverable 5.64 -1.12
Incentive Recoverable - 11.31
Income Tax Refund Receivable (A Y. 2018-19) - 0.09
Input CGST 20.44 16.88
Input IGST 4.45 333
Input SGST 18.41 16.08
Interest Receivable 1421.11 126241
Interest Receivable On FDD - 3432
Kotak Mahindra General Insurance Company Limited 6.96 -
Kuri Prize Receivable - 8.55
Maxvalue Consultancy Services Pvi Lid - -15.19
Pharmasquire Media & Publishing Pvt Ltd - 580
Prepaid Expenses 3318 854
Profession Tax Recoverable - 0.2
Pravision for cash shortage Recoverable A/C 325 -
S S Bullion 401 -
Special Adhesive Stamp 0.14 10.83
Staff Welfare Expense Recoverable - 0.01
Stock-Stamp A/C 0.63 036
Tds Receivable Fy 2018-19 - 079
Tds Receivable Fy 2019-20 130.32 153737
Tds Receivable Fy 2020-21 - 10298
Tds Receivable Fy 2021-22 0.51 14198
Tds Receivable Fy 2022-23 161.33 -
Tds Recoverable 1.18 593
Transfast Financial Service Pnvate Lad 0.00 0.02
Weizmann Forex Lid 0.08 Q.12
Deposits
Caution Deposit 375 375
Deposit- KSEB 1.79 1.79
Rent Deposit 350.65 323.69
Rua Fees Security Deposit .80 0.80
Security Deposit- CDSL 303 303
Telephone Deposit 0.18 012
Others
Deferred Revenue Expenditure - 543.39
TOTAL(NOTE 15%5) 2244.48 2712.67




NOTE 16
IRADE RECEIVARLES

Ageing for trade receivabies — non-current oulstanding as at March 31, 2023
15 a5 Tollows:

Particulars

Cutstanding tor following period from due date of pay

Less than 6 moaths 2-3 yeary “ore than 3 years

(1) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered good -
(it} Undisputed Trade Recervables - which have significant 1 in credit nisk
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivebles - Credit Impatred
(iv) Dispuied Trade Recgivables - Considered Good
(v) Disputed Trade Recoivables - which have significant increase in credit risk
{vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired
Total of the above
Total Unbilled due
Ageing for trade receivables — non-current outstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
Particulars Outstanding for following period from Jue date of payment

EAsythan 6 months 2-3 years

(1} Undisputed Trade Eeceivables - Considered good

More than 3 years

£ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk AR
¢iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired A
{iv) Digputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good ) 28
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant increase in credit risk a m.&! ¥ i)
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - Credit Impaired WU
Tatal of the abave ! . ....\\

Total Unbilled due




GROSS BLOCK - COST/BOOK VALUE(AMT.IN LAKHS)

DEPRECIATION/ AMORTISATION(AMT.IN LAKHS)

ET BLOCK (AMT.IN LAKH

Dedsctions/ a Frovision Excess
SLNo FParticulars Groas Block as -M_.._..._ﬁan...ﬂ adjustments _m___..«-“ ersal D:M.M.”-onr Totat as on a-__.qu_.._-.,mr““ .—o__3_w..€ don ._...s_.“.uqa.. Uue....ne-u.. Total a3 on As on As on
on OL.04.2012 during the year ._n“_.“nw_.-_.n during the| 31.03.2023 01.04,2022 year| on sold asset |Retained| charged , 31.03,2023 01.04.2022 | 31.03.2023
YERr reversed  (Earni
1 Farniture & Fittings 2249.14 195.21 2.47 - 2441.88 1204.39 94.12 1.78 - - 1500.2% 1044.75 941.59
2 Electrical Fittings 24.92 1,43 - - 26.3% 18.58 3.37 - - - 21.95 634 4,40
3 Computer & Software 228.63 17.% 11.70 - 244.48 182.67 27.37 1126 - - 221.30 45.96 23.18
4 Office Equipments 429.63 51.99 1.72 - 473.90 M7.28 57.17| 118 - . 371.60 112,38 102.29
5 Plant And Machinery 3.98 - - - 5.98 509 0.70 - - - 5.79 3.89 3.19
& Vehicke 28.18 - - - 28.18 23,10 1.59| - - - 24,69 5.08 3.49
7 Land 1739.72 - - - 1739.72 - - - . - 1739.72 173972
3 Capital WIP-Branch [nterior| - - - - - - - - - . - -
9 Livestock 0.60 .60 - 0.60
TOTAL 4709,19 276.80 21.99 4964.0% Fo-... 384,32 20.20 - - 2145.62 2968.08 1818.47

NOTE 10. FIXED ASSETS - INTANGIBLE

SZA)

GROSS BLOCK - COST/BOOK VALUE{AMT.IN LAKHS)

PREGIATION/ AMORTISATION(AMT.IN LAKHS)

ET BLOCK (AMT.AN LAKH

s

)

Provision

Excess

1) The property,plant & squipment & intangible assets have not been revalued during the year.
2) AH the immovable properties listed above are held im the name of the company.
3} There are no proceedings against the compaay under the Benami Transactions{Prokibition) Act,1988.

Deductions/
SLNe Particulars Gross Block as n“._-_—“”””“ua adjustments —n_."- ﬁ“.“”" GRHM.”_RE .-n_enn_.“mlna-. q...n._.-.p_.o.. a_.s.“oa ) Total as on Ason Ason
on 01.04.2022 during the year during the during the| 31.03.023 an soMd asset | Retained| reversed 31.03.2023 01.04.2022 | 31.03.2023
year year reversed |Earmings|to retsined
£arnings
1 Trade Mark 0.98 - - - 0.93 0.61 0,07 - - - 0.69 0.37 0.29
2 Software 35.97 - - - 85.97 55.73 6,05 - - - 61.78 30.23 24.19
TOTAL 86.95 - - - 86.95 56.35 6,12 - - - 62.47 30.60 24.48
Grand Total|___4796.14 27630 2150 | 505103 | 179745 390.44] 2020 - - 2167.69 | 2998.68 | 28425
Notes:-




MO AL REDITS AND NV ESTMENTISLTD

REGDLOFIIC IS FLOORG LE KAy PLAZA Ol

MEFTROPOLIT AN HOSPHP AL KOORKENC HERYCEHRISSE R-6R0007
NOTES TO PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
NOTE b7 Figures As on Figures As on
31.03.2023 31.02.2022
REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS (Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs.in Lakhs)
Interes{ Income
{nterest [On Business Loan 0.09 0.06
Interest On Consumer Loan 151.14 278.59
[nterest On Gold Loan 3373.49 2669.75
Interest On Mahila Kshema 26.64 -
Interest [Dn Microfinance 1505.75 944,09
Interest [On Motatorium - Consumer Loan : 141.72 -54.83
Interest On Moratoriym - Consumer Loan Edmax 0.07 -0.21
Interest [On Moratorium - Micro Finance 119.43 -9.59
Interest On Moratorium - Vehicle Loan -208.59 -300.09
Interest Pn Moratorium Interest 110.63 315.55
Interest D Overdue - Traders Loan - 0.07
Interest Pn Overdue - Vehicle Loan 970.76 1419.79
Interest Pn Overdue Mahila Kshema 0.71 -
Interest On Overdue Samruddhi Loan 49.84 19.10
Interest Pn Overdue Traders Loan (Max Vanijya) 7.00 10.22
Interest On Overdue-Edmax -2.48 443
Interest {In Qverdue-Vyapari Kshema 4.83 0.03
Interest On Samruddhi Loan 439.44 119.35
Interest O Traders Loan 0.04 0.01
Interest Pn Traders Loan (Max Vanijya) 130.59 50.14
interest Pn Vehicle Loan 6766.29 82447
Interest On Vyapari Kshema 27.15 4.15
Interest Received-Edmax 0.63 28.19
13615.18 13743.51
Fee based Income
Appraisal Charges - Max Samruddhi 2.05
Appraisdl Charges (Vyapari Kshema) 0.27
Appraisgl Charges-Mahila Kshema -
Documeptation Charges-V1 204.56
Documeptation Charge-Mf -
Fore Clasure Charges- Vyapari Kshem 0.39
Fore-Clgsure Charges On Traders Loan 5.10
Income Auto Loan Finance 506.45
Netice Charge 15.15
Pre Closhire Charges - Gold Loan 2.03
Pre-Clogure Charges-Mahila Kshema -
Pre-Closure Interest Edmax 0.10
Processing Fee -Mf 59.67
Processipg Charge-Edmax - 1.52
Processing Charges - Gold Loan 43.48 3R8.83
Processing Charges (Vyapari Kshema) 4.60 2.68
Processihg Charges{Samruddhi Loan) 111.63 40.96
Processifg Fee — Mahila Kshema 3.71 -
Processing Fee (Max Vanijya) 43.31 24.51
Processitig Fee -Cdl 16.77 17.60
Service Charge Vehicle Loan 526.56 597.87
1350.42 1519.74

TOTAL]- REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 14965.60 15263.25




Figures As on

Figures As on

NOTE| 18 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
OTHER INCOME (Rs.in Lakbs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)
Auctiop Expense Received-Consumer Loan 0.44 0.16
Auctioh Expense Received-Gl 6.95 9.09
Chitty Divident - 0.02
Collection Against Loss On Repossessed Asset 99.20 19.66
Collection Against Written Off Account-Business Loan 31.87 -
Collectjon Against Written Off Account-Vehicle Loan 54.28 -
Commission From Money Transfer 0.74 0.82
Discout Received - 0.11
Interest On Fixed Deposit 232.89 398.35
Interest{On Income Tax Refund 13.44 (.02
News Paper Publication Charge 0.07 -
Other IFlcome 54.75 13.82
Round Off 0.01 -
Salary Deduction Reversed 24.00 -
Sundry [Written Back 3.14 -
Transfer Noting Charges - Debenture 0.01 0.02
Transfer Noting Charges - Subdebt 1.58 3.08
TOTAL-OTHER INCOME 523.37 445.14
Figures As on Figures As on
g;)fl’:’i(l)gYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
(Rs.ip Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)
Esi 70.99 64.59
Gratuity 256.09 10.04
Group Isurance 9.39 20.68
lndivid\%i Accidental Insurance Policy 1.64 2.10
Provident Fund 112.70 145.34
Salary 3944.66 3354.89
Staff Incentive 105.34 17.52
Staff Welfare Expense 8.20 6.18
Stipend 37.80 15.38
TOTAL-EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES 4546.82 3636.72
NOTE Figures As on Figures As on
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
FINANCE COSTS (Rs.in Lakhs) (Rs.in Lakhs)
Interest On Debenture 400.21 533.43
Interest Qn Innova Loan - 0.19
Interest On Od Axis Bank 5.34 v
Interest Pn Od Esaf - 3.08
Interest Qn Subordinate Debt 7355.03 9083.91
Interest On Tuv Loan-Mzhindra Finance - 0.15
TOTAL{FINANCE COSTS 7760.58 962().76




Figures As on

Figures As on

NOTE21 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
OTHEF EXPENSES (Rs.in Lakhs) | (Rs.in Lakhs)
Additidnal Provision Restructure-MRExpense) -200.86 200.86
Additianal Provision Restructure-Vehicle Loan{Expense) -1040.91 1046.39
Advertisement & Business Promotion 147.45 11.71
Annual|Custody Fee 1.79 0.75
Auction Expense Gold Loan 2.73 0.04
Auction Expenses-Two Wheeler 9.86 5.24
Audit Ree 7.05 4.30
Bank Charges 50.84 44.10
Bank Charges-Vehicle Loan 16.20 -
Branch Identification Expence 0.11 0.09
Capital |Raising Fee Account 98.69 -
*Cloud|-Based Call Center Solution™(Call) Charges 0.94 -
Cibil Charges 20.00 2442
Cloud §erver Rent 39.43 30.87
Commigsion Bc Charges 0.72 -
Commission Collection Agency 482.26 489.63
Commision Collection Agency - Repo Process 64.24 8.47
Commission For Debenture Trustee 1.20 1.20
Crif Charges 0.11 -
Dealer $taff Vehicle Loan 51.32 60.89
Deferred Revenue Expenditure W/Off 543.39 623.30
Directors Remmuneration 68.00 -
Documentation Expense 0.23 2.97
Donati 4.02 -
Duplicate Rc Expenses- Vehicle Loan 0.02 -
Electricjty Charges 638.07 52.88
F¢ & Other Incentive 37.70 13.22
Foremah Commission 0.30 1.20
Generatpr Running Expenses 0.82 0.84
Gold W|/ Off 0.25 -
Gst Pai 0.69 0.32
Housekeeping Wages 1548 14.36
Inaugurstion Expenses 2.38 3.99
Incentivie Recoverable Written Off 11.31 -
Income [Tax Paid FY 2015-16 13.47 -
Ineligible ltc Account-Expense 156.30 113.84
Institution Tax 732 1.95
Insurange Charges 3.67 4.05
Interest On Gst - Rem 0.23 1.59
Interest On Service Tax - 1.07
Internet Charges 63.22 59.93
Kuri Expenses 0.09 0.11
Labour/Customer Verification Charges 10.89 13.08
Labour/Customer Verification Charges—Vehicle Loan 7.70 -




Land Tlax

Legal Charges—Vehicle Loan

Legal Consultancy Charges

Legal Expenses

Loan Written Off

Loss On Repossessed Asset

Marketing & Sales Promotion

Marketing & Sales Promotion-Vehicle Loan
Marketing Agency Commission

Meeting Expenses

Repair ﬁ Maintenance

g
Sales Promotion Expenses

Service Tax

Sitting Fees-Directors
Sms Charge

Softwate Expenses
Sponsofship Fee

Ssi Certificate Licence
Staff Recruitment Service

0.04
8.66

33.16
3988.60
14.74
3.77
8.36
10.29
1.63

1.17
0.26

11.63
0.42
26.92
4.57

57.58
2.28
26.59
3.33
-1480.89
13.33
-27.57
3.25
0.40
6.34
1.44
638.07
138.36
0.79

12.25
5.90
19.13
0.18

0.91
4.38
0.34
0.95
0.24
0.04
23.39

0.08

0.08
12.27
25.39

307.05
17.16
40.32
28.29

7.17

0.10

1.01
9.11
0.20
22.64

0.12
45.79

13.63
7.44
1285.49

-26.35

0.30
5.92
6.07
562.18
79.81
0.23
0.10
1.36
13.25
7.80
22.65

0.11

3.95
023

0.04
0.25




Traders Loan - Moratorium Write Off

0.06

Traders Loan - Write Off Account 0.91 -

Training Expenses 10.62 0.56
Transportation Charges 1.97 1.26
Travelling Expense-Cl Dpt 594 0.61
Travelljng Expenses 146.00 75.74
Twl - §torage Expense 18.79 7.62
Twl Ddaler Incentive 212.43 215.56
Twl Indentive 186.06 132.34
Twl-Moratorium Write Off Account 14595 -

Wages 3.85 0.81
Yard Rent 36.06 41.08
TOTAL-OTHER EXPENSES 5102.63 5814.52




MANVALLE CREDETS AND INVESTMENTS LTD

REGD.OFFICL:IST FLOORCLELE KAY PLAZA, OPP.
METROPOLITAN HOSPEE AT ROQORKENCHERY THRISSE R-630007
SUB NOTES TO NOTES FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET

HNOTE L1 F;gurm As on
VEHICLE LOAN - TRADE ADVANCE 1-03.2023
(Rs.in Lakhs)
Arya Bhangi Motors-Ta 0.20
Pioneer Mme:%K 0.39
Signature Motors - Kasargode 0.65
Tranz Motors Tvs Thiruvankulam 0.03
SUBTOTAL(1.1)- SHOWN UNDER OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 1 27||
NOTE 2.1 Fﬁu(:;szggsm
(ADVANCE TO SUPPLIERS (Rs.in Lakhs)
Novel Business Solutions Pvt Ltd 6.00“
Parasya Arts 0.25
Sbi Health Insyrance 0.88
SUBTOTAL(2.1)- SHOWN UNDER OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 7.13
o
"SU—N_D‘BESM (Rs.in Lakhs)
R Associates| Kollam 0.50||
V Associates 4.00
b Associates 0.39
bhilash Jeevanand 0.41
ces Trivandrum-Vehicle Loan 1.79
cumen 0.07
d Associates Trivandrum-Collection Agency 1.03
Adv Dhanya A|D 0.10
Adv Rajeev C 0.20
Agr Associates 0.67
Aikkaraparambil Yard 0.07
im Management Services Trivandrum-Vehicle Loan 1.46
Airtel 1.06
lej Associatian - Twl 1.76
Apt Management Solutions Pattanamthitta 0.21
Aradhana Finafcial Services-Vehicle Loan 1.51
scension Assgciates Kottayam - Vehicle Loan 0.29
Asier Associat¢s Pathanamthitta-Vehicle Loan 1.27
tharva Associates 0.83
Auto Park 0.19
utoland 0.10




thess Solution

Credit Value Calicut - Vehicle Loan

hates

ffic

5

ack P Ltd

Eminose Busingss Solutions-Vehicle Loan

Equifax Credit
Famous Autogs

Information Service Private Limited
rage

Fin Evolve AssEciates Kollam

Forlight Electri

Y

cals

ortune Associgtes

(Generous Asso
Girnasoft Autol
(Grace Associaty
Grow Well Ser
Harish And As{

It Care Tech Sy

Kk Associates ]

i¢s

ciates Kasaragode-Vehicle Loan
mobiles Pvt Ltd

S

vice Alappuzha - Vehicle Loan

Jociates Management Consultants P Ltd
jes - Twl

Ervices

Ciates

pport

Kannur - Yard Rent

oolath Advertising

ates Kottayam
ising And Marketing Pvt Ltd

0.43|
0.78
0.12
0.50
0.62
1.50
0.31
2.41
0.54
0.13
0.69
1.20
0.01
0.30
0.41
0.42
0.11
1.49
0.89
0.13
0.11
0.02
0.81
4.42
0.05
0.79
1.15
1.15
2.05
0.23
0.29
0.22
1.43
0.24
0.06
2.50|
0.02
0.02
0.11
0.88
1.28
3.78
6.06
0.08
4.12




‘IMoneda Bu::tss & Management Service 0.71
" [Murahari Tradgrs 0.56
andana Assotiates Trivandrum-Vehicle Loan 0.85
iva Associatgs Trivandrum-Collection Agency 0.18
Parvana Assocjates 0.06
inakin Busingss Care Kasargod-Vehicle Loan 1.79
Popular Assocjates-Calicut 0.52
Praja Associates Kollam-Vehicle Loan 0.50]|
Prasanth & Aspociates 2.52
Prompt Fincar¢ Calicut-Collection Agency 0.19
R J Associates|Kollam 0.63
R Ramesh 0.11
Raj Associates 2.30
Raj Associates Calicut 1.87
Rasha World 0.15
Rd Associates [Kollam 0.30
Real Associatds Thrissur 1.87
i 0.11

0.80

3.55

1.97

0.10

0.05

424

0.24

0.03

0.66

1.06

[Star Associates Kasargode 0.46
Sun Associate$ Trivandrum-Collection Agency 0.86
Tata Tele Business Service 0.09]
Thathwamasi Enterprises 0.56
Thattil Jewellars 0.13
Threestar Assqciates 0.35
Transunion Cipil Ltd 0.89
Unique Solutigns 1.30
ertex Associates Thrissur-Vehicle Loan 0.21
ictory Assocjates Kollam 0.05
inayaka Solutions Malappuram 0.94
odafone Idea Cellullar Ltd 0.16
riters Information 11.71
elmark Agengies 3.72
perts Solutiohs 1.26
[SUBTOTAL(2.2)- SHOWN UNDER OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 113.42
[TOTAL -106.29




 |NoTES3

UDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Figures As on
31.03.2023
{Rs.in Lakhs)

7.05

7.05

Figures As on

31.03.2023

OAN (Rs.in Lakhs)
Vehicle Loan 36499.66
Unmatured Fingnce Charges -5892.97
Matured Finandge Charge -597.25
Vehicle Loan - Moratorinm Interest 1138.15
Matured Finande Charges - Moratorium -841.86
TOTAL 30305.73
NOTE S Shisans|
HCONSUMEB LOAN (Rs.in Lakhs)
[Consumer loan . 259.14]]
ITOTAL ZRNYHI 259.14

/SR

i
oL + ]
A "

Figures As on
31.03.2023
(Rs.in Lakhs)

7777.78

7777.78

Figures As on

31.03.2023

CONSUMER LOAN - BRA
O NCH CHANNEL (Rs.in Lakhs)
onsumer loan pccount-Edmax 7.84
Consumer Loan Edmax - Moratorium Interest 0.01
TOTAL 7.85
|NOTE 5 Pritynie
GRATUITY (Rs.in Lakhs)
LIC Premium phid during the year -2.99
Balance payabl¢ as per actuarial report -257.23
TOTAL | -260.22




MAXVALUE CREDITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD REGD.OFFICE:1ST FLOOR,CEE KAY
PLAZA, OPP. METROPOLITAN HOSPITAL KOORKENCHERY, THRISSUR-680007

Note 22 : Related Party Transactions - 01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023

Nature of Transaction | Amount in Lakhs

23.13
2313

Total

Maxvalue Capital Liow:
i Amount in Lakhs
Eonsumer ioan iroduct disiersal | 707.91
Maxvalue consultancy Py bt .
Particulars Amount in Lakhs
Payment td Max vaiue consultancy pvt Itd 15.19 1
[Commission BC charge 68 i
Amount received from Equifax 2.18
Particulars T Amount in Lakhs
Mr. Paulsoh C.V %“5‘”’“’ NN 75
Mr. Christg George 57 . E N 1.50
Mr. Girish K.K 1.00
Mr. Gopingthan V.K 1.25
Mr, Prathapan K.x A 1.00
Mrs. Sarala/ Devi M P 2.25
Mr. Manoj V.R 1.00
Mr. Paramgswaran P.N 1.75
Mr. Nandh]akumar K 1.00
A 75

Total

Remuneration o Directors

Amount in Lakhs

Mr. Paulsoh C.V 20.00
Mr. Christq George 24.00
Mr. Manoj V.R 24.00

Grand Total
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NPA AS ON 31.03.2023

VEHICLE LOAN 30305.73] 6194.08] . .

GOLD LOAN 1548349 1546269} 11} 266 - -
MICROFINANCE | 7777.78 umm&mw_ L 197.13) - 1 Nm -
CONSUMER LOAN Nmm.u..n_-. waho 56.98 ) - ouu -
gmmzmmﬁﬁg - - B - L - ot =
CUSTOMER BUS) S - - - e - B
SAMMRUDDHI LOAN B - - -
'CONSUMER LOAN >noo¢z._,,mo§x B ~ 348) 0.65
TRADERS LOAN E»x <>z$>w - - ~ 468| -
VYAPARI KSHEMA - -] -
TRADERS LOAN - - -
MAHILA KSHEMA = " __ - -] -
TOTAL 56226.04 51695.16 2710.48 772.24 40.08 835.93




NPA AS ON 31.03.2023

EEIERE |
59.74|

4.13]
4.68]

10.11

0.31

B 5.87

0.28

127.74

4530.89

1820.40]

206.78

271.05




4.68

1011}

154.45

250.78

617.19|




I

SUMMARY CRAR 31.03.2023

TIER 1 CAPITAL 7086.97

NET OWNED FYIND 7086.97

TIER 2 CAPITAL J— 375026
-|RISK ADJUSTED| ASSETS SN | 61495 20

PARTICULARS h ¢ %

TIER 1 CAPITAL U 1152

TIER 2 CAPITAL 6.10




CAPITAL ANALYSIS 2022-23

PARTICULARS AMOUNT | AMOUNT

INCRORES | IN LAKHS

[Share Capjtal 164.76 16475.98
Add: Resefves and Surplus

Share premjum 8.51 851.08

Accumulatdd loss/profit last year -76.54 -7654.10

Profit / losq for the current year -21.54 -2154.39

Statuiory Reserve 0.76 76.31

Total R&S -88.81 -8881.10

Less: Intangible assets & b/f lusses

Less: Software & trademark 0.24 24.48
[Less: Deferred revenue Expenditure to be W/Q - -
{Less: Deferred tax asset/(Liability) 4.83 483.42

TOTAL T ERTOAPRL AL

THIRODT

METFEWANEDR FLND TRH.IT
TIER 2 AP AL
AMOUNTIN | AMOUNT
PARTICULARS CRORES IN LAKHS
FPreference phare capital other than convertible into equity .l - -

Provision o STD asset R NN 2.07 206.78
Subdebt nej of discounting R NN 79.03 7903.34
TOTAL T{ER 2 CAPITAL e F 81.10 81i0.12
50% OF TIER 1 CAPITAL T3 | 35.43 3543.48

RIS [ nd 13

AMOUNTIN | , AMOUNT IN | AMOUNT IN
PARTICULARS LAKHS % OF RISK [ ™ ' o CRORES
ICash & Bagk balances 4448.46 0% - -
ILoans and Advances 56226.04 100% 56226.04 562.26
IFixed Assets 2863.15 100% 2863.15 28.63
[Tax and Department 335.47 0% - -
Others 2406.01 100% 2406.01 24.06
|

HG2TED

HH4US 2




27076.78

27076.78

1826.46

18.26

9132.28 7305.82

1610.04 966.02 644.02 6.44
232.47 92.99 139.48 1.39

3657.05 1131.41 4525.64 45.26

767.7

767.75




L}
-
-

PARTICULARS AMOUNT IN CRORES AMOUNT IN LAKHS
Networth(NOF) 70.87 7086.97
Outside Liabilities 565.17 56516.88
Leverage 7.97

OUTSIDE LIABILITIES

2491.55

Debentures 24.92

Sub ordinated debts 444,76 44476.37

Interest payable on debentures 418 418.23

Interest payable on sub ordinated debts 91.31 9130.74
Total 565.17 56516.88




31-03-2022

Addition

Reduction

£30) |

Substd

Ooubtiul

VEHICLE LOAN.

| GOLD LOAN

MICROFINANCE

CONSUMER LOAN

BUSINESS LOAN

CUSTOMER BUSINESS LOAN

SAMMRUDDHI LOAN

TRADERS LOAN (MAX VANISYA)

VYAPARI KSHEMA _

TRADERE LOAN

MAHILA KSHEMA

© 3026 1971
080 579
L. &7 587

a0

148.38]

52.21

328

4.84]

I |

1.71

10.11

28202
3.74

. .31.04

1046.47
13.30)
556.65
370.28
24.74

T

__ 830

[ a7

Total

617.19)

2026.24

Sunstd

R

Substa

NPA PRV-EXP.

- ¥



NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS ON 3157 MARCH, 2023.

Note-1

M/S. MAXVALUE CREITS AND INVESTMENTS LTD is a Public Limited company incorporated in
India under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is a Non-Banking Finance Company
(NBFC) which provides a wide range of fund-based services including Gold, Vehicle, Traders Loan, and
Consumer Logn. The company operates through 140 branches spread across the State of Kerala, Karnataka
& Andhra Praflesh as at 31st March 2023. The company is a Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking
NBFC as per the revised guidelines issued by RBI in this regard.

B. ACCOUN’TING POLICIES

Significant acdounting policies adopted in the preparation-agd presentation of accounts are as under:

1. Basis of Accounting:

*
The Financial |Statements of the company ha \r

Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP). "t

comply in all material respects with Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules 2014 and the Companies
{Accounting Standards} Amendment Rules, 2016 and the guidelineé issued by the Reserve Bank of india as
applicable to a|Systemically Important Non-Deposit accepting NBFC. The Financial Statements have been
prepared on anf accrual basis and under the historical cost convention except for interest and discounts on
non-performing assets which are recognized on realization basis.

The Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of Financial Statements are consistent with those of

previous year, except for the change in Accounting Policy mentioned below.

2. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian GAAP requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of reporting period. Although these estimates
are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the catrying

amounts of assets and labilities in future periods.




Ll

3. Property, lllant & Equipment:

Fixed Assets pre stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of

bringing the assets to its working condition for the intended use.

4. Depreciatign:
Depreciation of Fixed Assets has been provided using written down value method and as per the ‘usefu! life'

concept in the part C of Schedule [I of the Companies Act, 2013.

5. Recognition of Income & Expenditure:

Items of Income and Expenditure are recognized on accrual basis.
6. Contingencies and Events occurred after Balance Sheet date:

There has been, a demand of Rs.19.87 Lakhs Raised by
petiod 04/2017 to 3/2019, towards which company has G Rs A ARy and filed an appea! in the Honorable

Employees Provident Fund Organization for the

High Court of Kerala.

7. Prior period and Extra -ordinary items:
=416 Profit & Loss A/C
Extra-ordinary ifem amounting to Rs. 2.5 Lakhs has been credited as Profit on sale of Fixed assets.

Prior period iteths amounting to Rs.2.28 Lakhs has been deb

8. Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates:
“Company is congistently following the prescribed accounting policies. Company has changed the NPA
upgradation policy as per RBI guidelines. Company has incurred oss of Rs. 853.01 Lakhs in NPA

provision due to{this change.

9. Foreign Exchange transactions
Transactions in |foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction or at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the

transaction. No such transactions entered by the company during the reporting period.

10. Investmenty

Investments -Nil




11, Cash Flpw Statement
Cash flows arg reported using the indirect method, whereby profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of

transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or

payments and [tem of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash

flows from opgrating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

12. Retirement

Benefits:

The company’s contribution towards Provident Fund is a defined contribution and is accounted for

on accrual basis and recognized in the profit and loss account. The company has provided for its
liability towards payment of Gratuity in the books of accounts and maintaining Gratuity fund with

Life Insurance Corporation of India. The details are as follows,

l Amouat (in
Details of Gratuity provision and LIC premium Lakhs)
Balance as on|01.04.2022 7.11
Payment towards LIC Gratuity FY 2022-23 -
Additional prgvision as per actvarial valuation for the FY 2022-

23 253.10
Total provision to be provided till 31-03-2023 as per actuarial

valuation 260.21
Out of this, paid during,

FY 2022-23 -
Paid for LIC premium in FY 2022-23 2.99.00
Balance provision to be kept as on 31-03-2023 260.21

13. Provisions:

A provision is pecognized when an enterprise has a present obligation as a result of past event and it is

possible that an| outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation is respect of which a reliable

estimate can bd

made. Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on

management estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each

balance sheet dat

e and adjusted to reflect the current management estimate,



14. Provisiog for Taxation & Deferred Tax

Provision for taxation is made on the basis of the estimated tax liability with adjustment for deterred tax in
terms of Accopnting Standard 22 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Deferred tax
assets or liabiljties are based on temporary differences between the value of assets and liabilities recorded
in the Financigl Statements and those used for Income Tax purposes. Tax rates applicable to future periods
are used to caltulate year-end Deferred Tax Assets or Liabilities. Deferred Tax Asset is recognized only to
the extent that there is virtual certainty of realization,

Deferred Tax Calculation:

Deferred tax calculation for the FY 2022-23 Amount (in
Lakhs)
Depreciation as per IT act 281.69
Depreciation as per Companies Act 410.63
Difference 128.94
Deferred revepiue expenditure as per Company Act
Deferred Tax Asset @ 26%

15. Additiona| disclosures as per Schedule ITI of ¢ L1108

a) During thq year ended 31 March 2023, the company has complied with schedule III notified under
Companies |Act, 2013 for the preparation and presentation of its financial statement. The company has
also reclassified the previous year figures in accordance with the requirements applicable in the current
year. Company has not provided provision for Contingent liability in the books of account however,

separate distlosure for contingent liability has given in the point number 6.

b} Provision for Contingent Liabilities provided in the Books - Nil Nil

c) i. Expenditure in foreign currency Nil Nil
ii. Earnings in foreign currency Nil Nit |
iti, Dividend to non-residential shareholders Nil Nii
iv. Valug of imports Nil Nil

d) Notes 2 to 15 form part of the Balance Sheet as on 31st March, 2023 and Notes16 to 20 form part of the
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended on that date.

e) Figures are shown in Lakhs.




16. None of

the employees are drawing remuncration in excess of the limit specified u/s 5(2) of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014. Therefore, particulars
in terms of requirement of the Companies Act are not provided.
17. Numberjof Non-resident shareholders and dividend paid to them. Nil Nil

18. Revenue

Reve
and the reve
interest is un
company
its customers

Inte
amount outst
non-performi

unrealized a

19. Borrowing Cost

As per

Recognition

ue is recognized to the extent it is possible that the economic benefits will flow to the company

ue can be reliably measured. In a situation where management believes that the recovery of
rtain due to change in the price of gold or the account becoming overdue or otherwise, the

gnizes the income on such loans only to the extend it is confident of recovering interest from

through the sale of underlying security or otherwise.

t income on other loans is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the
ding and the rate applicable. Such interests, where the installments are overdue in respect of
g assets are recognized on realization basis. Any such income recognized are remaining

er the installments become overdue with respect to non-performing assets, is reversed.

AS 16 Borrowing cost being the inte

el

has been treaEd as revenue expenditure and debited to profit and loss account. None of the borrowing cost

has been capi

lized/amortized.

20. Related Party Disclosures
. Amount (in
Name Nature of Transaction Lakhs)
Hykon India Ltd Purchase of UPS, Repairs & Maintenance (Kerala & 23.13
Karnataka)

Business commission charges admitted 14.56

Maxvall_m Consultancy Referral commission received 1.31
Servides Pvt Ltd i

Invoice raised for Customer verification 217

Maxvalue Capital Consumer loan product disbursement 707.91
Saraladevi M Sitting fee 225




Christo George Sitting fee 1.50

K R Prathapan Sitting fee 1.00
Gitish K K Sitting fee 1.00
Mahoj V R Sitting fee 1.00

Sitting fee 0.7

C V|Paulson
Roy Vallanikkaran Sitting fee 0.75
Paramebwaran P N Sitting fee 1.75
Nandakumar Kottarath Sitting fee - 1.00
VK Gbpinathan Sitting fee 1.25
Paull;on c.V Remuneration 20.00

Christp George Remuneration 24.00
Manl 0j V.R Remuneration 24.00

21. List of Shireholders Holding more than 5% ttached

SL No. NAME NO. OF SHARES % OF SHARES

1 Maxvalue Capital 5,97,61,334 18.14

22. Pre-closure of Non-Convertible Debentures and Subordinated Debt

The company issued Non-Convertible Debenture for 5 years with a put option after Three year. During the
Financial year there were request for put option of debentures in case of 53 in numbers aggregating to
Rs.45%.50 Lakhs and company accepted all the requests.

Pre-ciosure of Sybordinated Debt (2022-23)- Nil

23. Transfer of Subordinated Debt

The company i3 issuing Subordinated Debt for a period of 5 years and there is an option to transfer the
Subordinated debt to another person before maturity. During the financial year, there was request for transfer

of Subordinated|debt amounting to Rs.751.68 Lakhs




24, Disclosufes on account of Restructured Loans

. . Loans restructured
Particulars Loans r;s}t{r;gn;r;;l during | Loans closaz::l funng the outstanding as on 31st
y March 2023
Count Amount Count Amount Count Amount
Vehicle lo 14900 8770.02 5159 5628.19 9741 3141.82
Microfinance 23574 2462.65 20553 2305.82 3021 156.83
TOTAL 38474 11232.67 25712 7934.01 12762 3298.65
25. Referral Commission on Disbursement of Consumer Loan.,

negotiation W
entering into |
(2022-23), in

new agreement and hence the ¢

A
this regard. &

26. Ratios
SINo Ratios 313;33”" 31%3;;“:"
I Current Ratio 1.05 1.71
2 Quick Ratio 1.05 1.71
3 Cash Ratio 0.13 0.46
4 Short-term liability to Total assets 51.79 32.82
5 Short-term liability to Long term assets 114.15 74.96
6 NCD (short term) to Total assets 2,08 0.91
7 Short-term liabilities to Total liabilities 51.79 32.82
8 Eﬁ):rght;]r:izr:ﬁ:;t)les to Total liabilities (excluding 58.49 36.66
9 Long-term assets to Total assets 45.37 43.78
10 Debt-Equity ratio (in times) 6.18 6.86




11 Debt service coverage ratio (in times) 0.29 1.26

12 Return on equity ratio {(in %) -26.20% -34.71%

13 Net capital turnover ratio (in times) 7.96 0.77

14 Net profit ratio (in %) -14.40% -24.36%

15 Return on capital employed (in %) 71.75% 77.46%
27. Capital

Capital adequacy reported as on 31-03-2023

(Amount in  Lakhs)

Perpetual Debt Instruments

Particulars 31-03-2023 31-03-2022

i) |[CRAR {%) 17.62% 16.90%
ii) |CRAR + Ticr | Capital (%) 11.52% 11.05%
iii) |CRAR ¢ Tier Il Capital (%) 6.10% 5.85%
) Amount of subordinated  debt 7903.34 11397.04
v

raised as Tier-I1 capital

Amount raised by issue of
V)




28. Investmpnts

{Amount in T Lakhs)

Particulars

Current

Year

Previous

Year

(1}[Value of{ Investments

(i) |Gross Value of Investments

{a) |In India

14.00

(b} Qutside India,

(ii) |Provisions for Depreciation

(a){In Indiz

(b)|Qutside India,

(iii)|Net Value of Investments

{a) |In India

(b) O1utside India.

(2)|Movement of provisions held towards

depreciation on investments.

(i) |Opening balance

(i) Add: Provisions made during the
ii

Year

(iii)

Less: Write-off / write-back of
excess|provisions during the year

(iv) CIosing balance

29.Derivatives

There are no derlvatives taken during the current and previous year.




29.1 Forwarg Rate Agreement / Interest Rate Swap

{(Amount in T Lakhs)

. Current | Previous
Particulars
Year Year

(i) |The notional principal of swap agreements

Losses  which would be incurred if
(i1) counterparties failed to fulfil their obligations
under the agreements

Collateral required by the applicable NBFC

upon entering into swaps

(iit)

() Concentration of credit risk arising from the
v
swaps $

(v} |The fair value of the swap book @

Note: Nature and terms of the swaps including information on creditand

market risk and the accounting policies adopted for recording

the swaps should also be disclosed. m
$ Examples of concentration could be € res \\t&} lar
industries or swaps with highly geared wmp@“ﬁ

@ If the swaps are linked to specific assets, liaw&mems, the
fair vaiue would be the estimated amount that theappiicable NBFC would

receive or pay to terminate the swap

agreements as on the balance sheet date.




29.2 Exchan

%e Traded Interest Rate (IR) Derivatives

(Amount in T Lakhs)
S. '
Particulars Amount
No.
(i) |Notional principal amount of ¢xchange traded IR

derivatives undertaken during the year (instrument-

wise)

a)

b)

c)

(i)

Noticnal principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding as on 3ist March

(instrument-wise)

a)

b)

c)

(i)

Notional principal amount of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding

(instrument-wise)

a)

b)

c)

(iv)

Mark-to-market  value of exchange traded IR
derivatives outstanding and not “highly effective"

(instrument-wise)

a)

b)

c)




) © 293 Discloliures on Risk Exposure in Derivatives

Qualitative Disclosure -Nil

30. Asset Liability Management Maturity pattern of certain items of Assets and Liabilities

As on 31* March 2023 (Amount in Lakhs): -

PARTICUL [1-7 days 8-14 [15-30/31 Over 2 er3 Over6 | Over 1 | Over3 Over 5 [Total
ARS days  [Overl
days " months |month Month | year& | years & | years
mon
5 upto 3 [&uptod [& uptol| uptod | upto S
f;
up o months |months year years | years
Month
Loans 1953.43 970.42 2034.83 4803.91 5436.57 |16203.19|15508.02|14575.69/16.26 - 01502.62
Borrowings |1598.26 283.34 |1138.29 R650.96 2902.11 {7381.13 [12500.69|11601.876143.52 [767.75 46967.92

During the fin
2544 Lakhs. Gompany advanced loans to the tune of Rs 56226 Ik

Lakhs. Company is generating adequate cash flows to cover its administrative expenses and liabilities.

On the next six months from 31 March 2023 Company is expected to realize Rs 31401 Lakhs from its
advances and pay outs towards debentures and sub ordinated debts are Rs 15953 Lakhs, towards
employee bengfit expenses Rs 1950 Lakhs, administrative expenses Rs 1590 Lakhs

From October 2023 onwards Company is expected to realize Rs 15508 Lakhs from its advances and pay
outs towards debentures and sub ordinated debts are Rs 125 Lakhs, towards employee benefit expenses.
Rs 1890 Lakhs, administrative expenses Rs 1610 Lakhs (Short of Rs 492 Lakhs) Company is planned to
raise sub ordingted debts for Rs 5000 Lakhs during the period.

Company has sound position in terms of liquidity.




31. Exposufes

31.1 Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Conlpany does not have exposure to Real Estate Sector

31.2 Exposure to Capital Market

Company does not have exposure to Capital Market

31.3 Details of financing of parent company products
Company does not have financing of parent company products

31.4 Details of Single Borrower Limit (SGL) / Group Borrower Limit (GBL) exceeded by the applicable
NBFC

Not Applicable

31.5 Unsecured Advances
Nil

32 Miscellaneous

32.1 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators

‘The company is not registered with any other financial sector regulators.

32.2 Disclosure of Penalties imposed by RBI aud other regulators
Penalty NIL

32.3 Related Rarty Transactions - Refer note 20

32.4 Ratings asgsigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year

Company has np ratings by Credit rating agencies and Migration of ratings during the year.

32.5 Rem unercltion of Directors

For details of R¢muneration to Directors, please refer note 20




32.6 Net Profit or Loss for the period, prior period items and changes in accounting policies

Refer note 7

32,7 Revemie Recognition

Details regar{ling Revenue recognition are provided in Note 18 of Notes to Accounts.
32.8 Consolifl ated Financial Statements (CFS)

Consolidated|Financial statements is not applicable for the company.
33.Additiond) Disclosures

K2l | Provisiorls and Contingencies

Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies’ shown
31% March| 31¢
under the head Expenditure in Profit
2023 March
and Loss Accpunt
2022
Provision on Cash Shortage -Exp A/C 3.25 ——
Provision on Spurious Gold -Exp A/C 13.33 —-
Provision towf:ds NPA -1480.89 | 1285.49
Provision made towards Income tax -—— -——
Provision for Gratuity 260.22 7.11
Provision for Standard Assets -27.57 | -26.34
Additional proyision for restructured loans -1241.77 | 1247.25

Additional proyision for restructured loans as on

31%March 2023
Amount in Lakhs
Additional projvision restructure-Vehicle loan -1040.91
{Expense)
Additional proyision restructure-MF(Expense) -200.86




33.2 Draw Down from Reserves

‘Details of dtaw down from reserves, if any, are provided in Note 2 to these financial statements

33.3 Concentration of Deposits, Advances, Exposures and NPAs

33.3.1 Concentration of Deposits (for deposit taking NBFCs)
NA

33.3.2 ConcTntration of Advances

As on 31% March 2023
{Amount in T Lakhs)

Total Advandes to twenty largest 359.25
borrowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty 0.64%

largest borrowers to Total

Advances of the applicable
NBFC

33.3.3 Concestration of Exposures

As on 31 March 2023
(Amount in T Lakhs)

Total Exposure to twenty largest 1310.00
borrowers /Cugtomers

Percentage |of Exposures to 2.7%% -
twenty largest porrowers / customers
to Total Expospre of the applicable
NBFC on borrowers / customers




- 33.3.4 Cong¢entration of NPAs

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
Total Expogure to top four NPA 20.67
Accounts
33.3.5 Sector-wise NPAs
Percentage of
Sl. NPAS to Total
No. Sector '
Advances in that
sector
1. |Agriculture & allied activities
2. |MSM
3. |Corporate borrowers
4, [Services
5. |Unsecured personal loans
6. |Auto lokans 13.57%
7. |Gold lo'ans 0.13%
8. |Business Loan-Micro Finance 2.74%
9. {Consumier Loan - 23.05%
10. |Samrudghi Loan 31.35%
11. |Consumer Loan Account-Edmax 99.90%
12. |Traders Loan (Max Vanijya) 9.75%
13, | Vyapari Kshema
14 |Mahila Kshema 3.51%
15. |Traders Loan 100.00%




' ; 33.4 Movement of NPAs

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)
3 31
Particulars March | March
2023 2022
(i) |Net NPAs to Net Advances (%) 6.48% 7.44%
(ii) IMovement of NPAs (Gross)
(a}!Opéning balance 7268.15 6733.74
(b); Additions during the year 2553.56 | 2893.40
{c)|Redbctions during the year -5290.82 | -2358.99
{d}[Cloging balance 4530.89 7268.15
(iii}) Movemaent of Net NPAs
(a) Ope*ing balance 4899.01 5650.05
(b)|Additions during the year 2314.07 | 251941
(c}|Reductions during the year -3570.44 | -3270.45
{d){Closing balance 3642.64 4899.01
(iv)]Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on -
standard assets /
) S
(a){Opening balance 2369.12 1083(16’8(*’9
=X Pl
{b)|Provikions made during the year 239.50 373.%5{;\:\ .
© Writeroff / write-back of excess -1720.38 91 1.45\"':"' 2 USS
c
Provigions
(d)|Closing balance 888.24 2369.12

33.5 Overseas Assets (for those with Joint Ventures and Subsidiaries abroad)
Company does pot have Overseas Assets,

33.6 Off-balange Sheet SPVs sponsored

Company does hot have Off-balance sheet SPVs (which are required to be consolidated as per accounting
norms) '




& 34.Disclosure of Com plaints

34.1 Custot+er Complaints
@ No} of complaints pending at the 2
a
beginning of the year
®) No| of complaints received during 18
the [year
© NoJ of complaints redressed during 10
¢
the year
@ No.\of complaints pending at the 6
end of the year
*No of compl%ints pending as at 31.03.2023
No Cfstonner Name Account No
1 | Soundararajan K 8993140001525
2 | MahinM M 9993020002194
3 |KalaRB 9994200002861
4 | VijayaKumar Cherukat 00677110000030
S | Subin§ 9993050036435
6 | Subash(R 9996300003856

35. Details of

'raud cases during the financial year 2022-23

Fraud amount Qutstanding Nature of Fraud
Particulars No of cases (Rsliln Lakhs) amount (Rs.in
' Lakhs)
Spurious Gold 02
Gold Loan 3 6.37 6.37 | Ttert Gold ol
Misappropriation and
Traders Loan l 13.33 13.33 criminal breach of trust
Microfinance 6 39.46 g1.0g | Cooh Misappropriation

36. Conversioﬁ of Preference shares -Nil




:37. Right Isspe

Company has offered right issue to the existing shareholders at 5:1. We have proposed 5,35,30,885/- no of
shares @Rs.5{- each, the Board approved the allotment of 1,79,67,679/- no of shares @Rs.5/- each,
aggregating tq Rs.898.38 Lakhs

38. Provision [for leave encashment

As per the decjsion of board the company has decided to reduce the maximum balance that can be permitted
to accumulated for each employee from 48 days to 24 days. The Company has no liability on encashment

hence provisiop has not provided this year.

39, Loss on Alction- Gold Loan

arest recognized on gold loan and

Loss on Auctiop — Gold Loan [P/L] Rs 3.06 Lakhs was on account of iz

later waived off. This amount is deducted from Interest on Gold L& Epresenting in Schedule IHL.
40.Appendix | lag ¢
B S ) \F‘:\?‘
s
PUBLIC DISCLOSURE ON LIQ ISK
AS ON 31.03.2023
Funding Concentration based on
(i) | significant counterparty
Number of Amount | % of
Significant (Rs. Total
Sr No. Counterparties crore) Liabilities
1 12910 | 469.68 70.86%
(ii) Top 20 large deposits NIL
(iii) Top10 hr:rrowings




Amount

Sr No. NAME lakhs
1 | REKHA PILLAI 300.00
CHAMARY BALAN | 5
2 |SUNILKUMAR | 110.00
CHANDRAKANTH i
3|.py 5000 i
ABRAHAM [ T :
4| VARGHESE | 50.00 |
ANNAMMA KIRIYAN :
5 | THOMAS 50,00 |
6 | KARTHIK RS 50,00 |
7 | KESUHARA | 50.00
8 | NOWSHAD V E 50,00
9 | SANJUDASN S 5000
JACINTHA :
10{DUNCAN | §_q.gp'5

{iv) Funding Concentration based on significant instrument/product

Amount | % of
Name of the {Rs. Yotal
Sr No. € instrument/product | crore) | Liabilities
w Debenture 24.92 3.76%
T"f
\\\J/{ Subordinate Debt | 444,76 67.10%
- IQ A C /
(v) Stock Ratios
(a) Commercial papers  NIL
Non-canvertible
debentures (original
maturity of less
{b) than one year} 2.93%
Cther short-term
{c) liabilities 70.15%
{vi) Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management NIL

EEREKENE
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